Filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2) Registration No.: 333-256748

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title of Each Class of Securities to be Registered	Amount to be Registered	Proposed Maximum Offering Price Per Unit	Proposed Maximum Aggregate Offering Price	Amount of Registration Fee(1)
Depositary Shares Each Representing a 1/40th Interest in a Share				
of 4.375% Fixed Rate Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred				
Stock, Series A	7,200,000	\$25.00	\$180,000,000.00	\$19,638.00
4.375% Fixed Rate Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock,				
Series A	180,000(2)			(2)

⁽¹⁾ Calculated in accordance with Rule 457(r) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

⁽²⁾ Each Depositary Share represents a 1/40th interest in a share of 4.375% Fixed Rate Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A. In accordance with Rule 457(i), no registration fee is required because Bank of Hawaii Corporation will not receive any separate consideration for the 4.375% Fixed Rate Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A.

PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT TO THE PROSPECTUS DATED JUNE 3, 2021

Ah Bank of Hawaii

7,200,000 Depositary Shares Each Representing a 1/40th Interest in a Share of 4.375% Fixed Rate Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A

We are offering 7,200,000 depositary shares, each representing a 1/40th ownership interest in a share of our 4.375% Fixed Rate Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A, par value \$0.01 per share (the "Series A Preferred Stock"), with a liquidation preference of \$25 per depositary share (equivalent to \$1,000 per share of Series A Preferred Stock). As a holder of depositary shares, you will be entitled to all proportional rights and preferences of the Series A Preferred Stock represented thereby (including dividend, voting, redemption and liquidation rights). You must exercise any such rights through the depositary.

We will pay dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock, if, when and as declared by our Board of Directors (or a duly authorized committee thereof), to the extent that we have lawfully available funds to pay dividends. If declared, dividends will accrue and be payable from the original issue date quarterly in arrears at a rate of 4.375% per annum, on February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1 of each year, beginning on August 1, 2021. Upon payment of any dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock, holders of depositary shares are expected to receive a proportionate payment.

Dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock will not be cumulative. If for any reason our Board of Directors (or a duly authorized committee thereof) does not declare a dividend on the Series A Preferred Stock for any dividend period, that dividend will not accrue or be payable and we will have no obligation to pay any dividends for that dividend period, whether or not dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock are declared for any future dividend period. Dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock will not be declared, paid or set aside for payment to the extent such act would cause us to fail to comply with applicable laws and regulations, including (but not limited to) the capital adequacy regulations and policies established by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.

We may redeem the Series A Preferred Stock at our option, subject to regulatory approval (if then required), (1) in whole or in part, from time to time, on any dividend payment date on or after August 1, 2026 or (2) in whole but not in part, at any time within 90 days following a regulatory capital treatment event (as defined herein), in either case at a redemption price equal to \$1,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per depositary share), plus any declared and unpaid dividends and, in the case of a redemption following a regulatory capital treatment event, the pro-rated portion of dividends, whether or not declared, for the dividend period in which such redemption occurs. If we redeem the Series A Preferred Stock, the depositary is expected to redeem a proportionate number of depositary shares.

We will apply to list the depositary shares on the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") under the symbol "BOHPrA." Trading of the depositary shares is expected to commence within the 30-day period following the original issue date of the depositary shares. Our common stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbol "BOH."

The Series A Preferred Stock will not have any voting rights, except the limited ones set forth under "Description of the Series A Preferred Stock—Voting Rights" beginning on page S-26.

Investing in the depositary shares involves risks. See "Risk Factors" beginning on page S-13, as well as "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020, our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021, and other reports that we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") that are incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

Neither the SEC nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Neither the depositary shares nor the Series A Preferred Stock are a savings account, deposit or other obligation of a bank and neither are insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the "FDIC") or any other governmental agency or instrumentality.

	Public Offering Price	Underwriting Discount (1)	Proceeds to Issuer (Before Expenses)	
Per depositary share	\$ 25.00	\$ 0.5197	\$ 24.4803	
Total	\$ 180,000,000.00	\$ 3,741,680.00	\$ 176,258,320.00	

The underwriting discount is calculated using a weighted average amount of \$0.7875 per depositary share for retail orders (492,800 depositary shares) and \$0.5000 per depositary share for institutional orders (6,707,200 depositary shares). See "Underwriting" for additional disclosure regarding the underwriting discount and estimated offering expenses payable by us.

The underwriters expect to deliver the depositary shares in book-entry only form through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company for the accounts of its participants, including Euroclear Bank SA/NV ("Euroclear") and Clearstream Banking, S.A. ("Clearstream"), against payment in New York, New York on or about June 15, 2021.

We expect to deliver the depositary shares against payment for the depositary shares on or about the date specified in the immediately prior paragraph, which will be the fifth business day following the date of the pricing of the depositary shares ("T+5"). Under Rule 15c6-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), trades in the secondary market generally are required to settle in two business days, unless the parties to a trade expressly agree otherwise. Accordingly, purchasers who wish to trade depositary shares on any date prior to two business days before the settlement date will be required, by virtue of the fact that the depositary shares initially will settle in T+5, to specify alternative settlement arrangements to prevent a failed settlement.

Joint Book-Running Managers

BofA Securities

Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC

Keefe, Bruyette & Woods

A Stifel Company

UBS Investment Bank

The date of this prospectus supplement is June 8, 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Prospectus Supplement

	Page
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT	S-1
<u>SUMMARY</u>	S-3
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	S-11
RISK FACTORS	S-13
<u>USE OF PROCEEDS</u>	S-19
<u>CAPITALIZATION</u>	S-20
DESCRIPTION OF THE SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK	S-21
DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES	S-29
BOOK-ENTRY PROCEDURES AND SETTLEMENT	S-32
MATERIAL UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES	S-35
<u>CERTAIN ERISA CONSIDERATIONS</u>	S-40
<u>UNDERWRITING</u>	S-42
<u>LEGAL MATTERS</u>	S-48
<u>EXPERTS</u>	S-49
INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE	S-50

Prospectus

	<u>r uge</u>
RISK FACTORS	1
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	1
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	2
INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE	2
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	4
BANK OF HAWAII CORPORATION	4
SECURITIES WE MAY OFFER	5
<u>USE OF PROCEEDS</u>	6
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	6
LEGAL MATTERS	7
EXPERTS	7

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

This document is in two parts. The first part is this prospectus supplement, which contains the specific terms of this offering of depositary shares. The second part, the accompanying prospectus dated June 3, 2021, which is part of our Registration Statement on Form S-3, gives more general information, some of which may not apply to this offering.

This prospectus supplement and the information incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus may add, update or change information contained in the accompanying prospectus. If there is any inconsistency between the information in this prospectus supplement and the information contained in the accompanying prospectus, the information in this prospectus supplement will apply and will supersede any such information in the accompanying prospectus.

In making your investment decision, it is important for you to read and consider all information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and any free writing prospectus relating to this offering prepared by us or on our behalf or to which we have referred you. You should also read and consider the information in the documents to which we have referred you in "Incorporation by Reference" in this prospectus supplement.

Neither we nor any of the underwriters have authorized anyone to provide any information other than that contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and any free writing prospectus relating to this offering prepared by us or on our behalf or to which we have referred you. We and the underwriters take no responsibility for, and provide no assurance as to the reliability of, any other information that others may give you.

Neither we nor any of the underwriters is making an offer to sell or soliciting offers to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where or to any person to whom the offer or sale is not permitted. The information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus or any free writing prospectus that we may provide you in connection with this offering or other offering material filed by us with the SEC is accurate only as of the date of those documents or information, regardless of the time of delivery of the documents or information or the time of any sale of the securities. Our business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and growth prospects may have changed since those dates.

For investors outside the United States: Neither we nor any of the underwriters has done anything that would permit this offering or possession or distribution of this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus or any free writing prospectus we may provide to you in connection with this offering in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required, other than in the United States. You are required to inform yourselves about and to observe any restrictions relating to this offering and the distribution of this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and any such free writing prospectus outside of the United States.

Notice to prospective investors in the European Economic Area

None of this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus or any related free writing prospectus is a prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Regulation (as defined below). This prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and any related free writing prospectus have been prepared on the basis that any offer of depositary shares in any Member State of the European Economic Area (the "EEA") will only be made to a legal entity which is a qualified investor under the Prospectus Regulation ("Qualified Investors"). Accordingly any person making or intending to make an offer in that Member State of depositary shares which are the subject of the offering contemplated in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and any related free writing prospectus may only do so with respect to Qualified Investors. Neither we nor the underwriters have authorized, nor do they authorize, the making of any offer of depositary shares other than to Qualified Investors. The expression "Prospectus Regulation" means Regulation (EU) 2017/1129.

PROHIBITION OF SALES TO EEA RETAIL INVESTORS –The depositary shares are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the EEA. For these purposes, a "retail investor" means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, "MiFID II"); or (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (as amended, the "Insurance Distribution Directive"), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Regulation. Consequently, no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (as amended, the "PRIIPs Regulation") for offering or selling the depositary shares or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the depositary shares or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation.

Notice to prospective investors in the United Kingdom

The communication of this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, any related free writing prospectus and any other document or materials relating to the issue of the depositary shares offered hereby is not being made, and such documents and/or materials have not been approved, by an authorized person for the purposes of section 21 of the United Kingdom's Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended (the "FSMA"). Accordingly, such documents and/or materials are not being distributed to, and must not be passed on to, the general public in the United Kingdom. The communication of such documents and/or materials as a financial promotion is only being made to those persons in the United Kingdom who have professional experience in matters relating to investments and who fall within the definition of investment professionals (as defined in Article 19(5) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005, as amended (the "Financial Promotion Order")), or who fall within Article 49(2)(a) to (d) of the Financial Promotion Order, or who are any other persons to whom it may otherwise lawfully be made under the Financial Promotion Order (all such persons together being referred to as "relevant persons"). In the United Kingdom, the depositary shares offered hereby are only available to, and any investment or investment activity to which this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and any related free writing prospectus relates will be engaged in only with, relevant persons. Any person in the United Kingdom that is not a relevant person should not act or rely on this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus or any of their contents.

PROHIBITION OF SALES TO UK RETAIL INVESTORS – The depositary shares are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the United Kingdom. For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part of domestic law of the United Kingdom by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018, as amended by the European Union (Withdrawal Agreement) Act 2020 (the "EUWA"); or (ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the FSMA and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA to implement the Insurance Distribution Directive, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law of the United Kingdom by virtue of the EUWA; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of the Prospectus Regulation as it forms part of domestic law of the United Kingdom by virtue of the EUWA (the "UK Prospectus Regulation"). Consequently, no key information document required by the PRIIPs Regulation as it forms part of domestic law of the United Kingdom by virtue of the EUWA (the "UK PRIIPs Regulation") for offering or selling the depositary shares or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the United Kingdom may be unlawful under the UK PRIIPs Regulation.

SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus and may not contain all of the information that may be important to you in making an investment decision. You should read this entire prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus carefully, including the information set forth in "Risk Factors," our consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto and the other information incorporated by reference herein and therein, before making an investment decision.

Our Company

We are a Delaware corporation and a bank holding company headquartered in Honolulu, Hawaii. Our principal operating subsidiary, Bank of Hawaii (the "Bank"), was organized on December 17, 1897, and is chartered by the State of Hawaii. The Bank's deposits are insured by the FDIC, and the Bank is a member of the Federal Reserve System. As of March 31, 2021, the Bank had 63 branches and 361 ATMs throughout Hawaii and the Pacific Islands.

The Bank, directly and through its subsidiaries, provides a broad range of financial products and services primarily to customers in Hawaii, Guam, and other Pacific Islands. The Bank's subsidiaries include, among others, Bank of Hawaii Leasing, Inc., Bankoh Investment Services, Inc., and Pacific Century Life Insurance Corporation, and are engaged in equipment leasing, securities brokerage, investment advisory services, and providing credit insurance.

Additional Information

Our corporate headquarters and principal executive offices are located at 130 Merchant Street, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813. Our telephone number at that address is (888) 643-3888. Our internet address is www.boh.com. Information on, or accessible through, our website is not part of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus.

The Offering

As used in this section, references to "Bank of Hawaii Corporation," "the Issuer," "we," "us" and "our" mean Bank of Hawaii Corporation, excluding its subsidiaries.

Issuer

Bank of Hawaii Corporation

Securities Offered

7,200,000 depositary shares, each representing a 1/40th ownership interest in a share of 4.375% Fixed Rate Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A, par value \$0.01 per share (the "Series A Preferred Stock"), with a liquidation preference of \$25 per depositary share (equivalent to \$1,000 per share of Series A Preferred Stock). Each holder of a depositary share will be entitled, through the depositary, in proportion to the applicable fraction of a share of Series A Preferred Stock represented by such depositary share, to all the rights and preferences of the Series A Preferred Stock represented thereby (including with respect to dividends, voting, redemption and liquidation rights). We reserve the right to re-open this series of preferred stock and issue additional shares of the Series A Preferred Stock either through public or private sales at any time and from time to time; provided that we will only issue such additional shares if they are fungible with the outstanding Series A Preferred Stock for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Upon issuance, the additional shares would form a single series with the Series A Preferred Stock underlying the depositary shares issued in this offering.

Dividends

We will pay dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock, if, when and as declared by our Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of our Board of Directors. If declared, dividends will accrue and be payable from the original issue date quarterly in arrears at a rate of 4.375% per annum. See also "—Dividend Payment Dates" below. Upon payment of any dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock, holders of depositary shares are expected to receive a proportionate payment.

Dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock will not be cumulative or mandatory. If our Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of our Board of Directors does not declare a dividend on the Series A Preferred Stock in respect of a dividend period, then no dividend shall be deemed to have accrued for such dividend period, be payable on the applicable dividend payment date, or be cumulative, and we will have no obligation to pay any dividends for that dividend period, whether or not our Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of our Board of Directors declares a dividend on the Series A Preferred Stock for any future dividend period.

Our ability to pay dividends is subject to bank regulatory requirements, including (but not limited to) the capital adequacy regulations and policies established by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (or any successor regulatory authority, the "Federal Reserve").

While the Series A Preferred Stock is outstanding, unless, in each case, the full dividends for the immediately preceding dividend period on all outstanding shares of preferred stock, if any, have been paid in full or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof has been set aside:

- no dividend will be declared or paid or set aside for payment and no distribution will be declared or made or set aside for payment on any junior stock (including, without limitation, our common stock), other than:
 - a dividend payable solely in junior stock, or
 - any dividend in connection with the implementation of a shareholder rights plan or the redemption or repurchase of any rights under any such plan;
- no shares of junior stock shall be repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by us, directly or indirectly (nor shall any monies be paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the redemption of any such shares by us) other than:
 - as a result of a reclassification of junior stock for or into other junior stock;
 - the exchange or conversion of one share of junior stock for or into another share of junior stock;
 - through the use of the proceeds of a substantially contemporaneous sale of other shares of junior stock;
 - purchases, redemptions, or other acquisitions of shares of the junior stock in connection with any employment contract, benefit plan or other similar arrangement with or for the benefit of employees, officers, directors or consultants; or
 - the purchase of fractional interests in shares of junior stock pursuant to the conversion or exchange provisions of such stock or the security being converted or exchanged; and
- no shares of parity stock, if any, shall be repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired
 for consideration by us, directly or indirectly (nor shall any monies be paid to or made
 available for a sinking fund for the redemption of any such shares by us), during a
 dividend period, other than:
 - pursuant to pro rata actions applicable to the Series A Preferred Stock and such parity stock, if any;
 - as a result of a reclassification of parity stock for or into other parity stock;
 - the exchange or conversion of parity stock for or into other parity stock or junior stock;
 - through the use of the proceeds of a substantially contemporaneous sale of other shares of parity stock; or

 the purchase of fractional interests in shares of parity stock pursuant to the conversion or exchange provisions of such stock or the security being converted or exchanged.

While the Series A Preferred Stock is outstanding, unless the full dividends for the immediately preceding dividend period on all outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock have been paid in full or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof has been set aside, no dividend will be declared or paid or set aside for payment and no distribution will be declared or made or set aside for payment on any securities that rank equally with the Series A Preferred Stock, subject to the exceptions noted above. When dividends are not paid in full upon the shares of Series A Preferred Stock and parity stock, if any, for the immediately preceding period and, in the case of parity stock entitled to cumulative dividends, the related prior periods, all dividends declared upon shares of Series A Preferred Stock and parity stock, if any, will be declared on a proportional basis so that the amount of dividends declared per share will bear to each other the same ratio that accrued dividends for the then-current dividend period per share on Series A Preferred Stock, and accrued dividends, including any accumulations, if any, on parity stock, if any, on a per share basis for the related prior periods, as the case may be, bear to each other. Dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock will not be declared, paid or set aside for payment to the extent such act would cause us to fail to comply with applicable laws and regulations, including applicable capital adequacy regulations and policies of the Federal Reserve. See "Description of the Series A Preferred Stock—Dividends—Additional Information" beginning on page S-22.

Dividend Payment Dates

No Maturity Date; Redemption at Our Option

Dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock will be payable if, when and as declared by our Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of our Board of Directors, quarterly in arrears on February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1 of each year, beginning on August 1, 2021 (each a "dividend payment date"). If any date on which dividends would otherwise be payable is not a business day, then the dividend payment date will be the next business day without any adjustment to the amount of dividends paid.

The Series A Preferred Stock is perpetual, has no maturity date, and we are not required to redeem or repurchase, nor are holders of the Series A Preferred Stock or depositary shares entitled to require that we redeem, the Series A Preferred Stock at any time. However, subject to regulatory approval (if then required), we may redeem the Series A Preferred Stock at our option, (i) in whole or in part, from time to time, on any dividend payment date on or after August 1, 2026 or (ii) in whole but not in part, at any time within 90 days following a regulatory capital treatment event (as defined herein), in either case at a redemption price equal to \$1,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per depositary share), plus any declared and unpaid dividends

and, in the case of a redemption following a regulatory capital treatment event, the pro-rated portion of dividends, whether or not declared, for the dividend period in which such redemption occurs. If we redeem the Series A Preferred Stock, the depositary will redeem a proportionate number of depositary shares from holders. Accordingly, the Series A Preferred Stock and depositary shares will remain outstanding indefinitely unless and until we decide to exercise our redemption option and receive the prior approval of the Federal Reserve.

Any redemption of the Series A Preferred Stock is subject to our receipt of prior approval by the Federal Reserve (if then required) and to the satisfaction of any conditions set forth in the capital adequacy regulations and policies of the Federal Reserve applicable to redemption of the Series A Preferred Stock.

In the event we liquidate, dissolve or wind-up our business and affairs, either voluntarily or involuntarily, holders of the Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to receive a liquidating distribution of \$1,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per depositary share), plus any declared and unpaid dividends, without accumulation of any undeclared dividends before we make any distribution of assets to the holders of our common stock or any other class or series of shares of junior stock. Distributions will be made only to the extent of our assets that are available after satisfaction of all liabilities to creditors and subject to the rights of holders of any securities ranking senior to the Series A Preferred Stock and *pro rata* as to the Series A Preferred Stock and any other shares of our stock ranking equally as to such distribution, if any.

Shares of the Series A Preferred Stock will rank, with respect to the payment of dividends and distributions of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up:

- senior to our common stock and any other class or series of stock that, by its terms, is junior to the Series A Preferred Stock;
- · junior to any of our existing and future indebtedness; and
- at least equally with each other series of our preferred stock, if any, we may issue if
 provided for in the certificate of designations relating to such preferred stock or
 otherwise (except for any senior series that may be issued with the consent of the
 requisite number of holders of the Series A Preferred Stock and all other parity stock, if
 any). See "Description of the Series A Preferred Stock—Voting Rights—Other Voting
 Rights."

We will generally be able to pay dividends and distributions upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up only out of lawfully available assets for such payment after satisfaction of all claims for indebtedness and other non-equity claims.

Liquidation Rights

Ranking

Voting Rights Holders of the Series A Preferred Stock and the depositary shares will have limited voting rights. See "Description of the Series A Preferred Stock—Voting Rights" Preemptive and Conversion Rights None. Listing We will apply to list the depositary shares on the NYSE under the symbol "BOHPrA." Trading of the depositary shares on the NYSE is expected to commence within the 30-day period following the original issue date of the depositary shares. For a discussion of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences relating to the Series Tax Consequences A Preferred Stock and the depositary shares, see the section entitled "Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences" beginning on page S-35 in this prospectus supplement. Use of Proceeds We estimate that the net proceeds to us from the sale of depositary shares in this offering, after deducting the underwriting discount and estimated offering expenses payable by us, will be approximately \$175.5 million. We intend to use the net proceeds from our sale of the depositary shares in this offering for general corporate purposes, which may include supporting asset growth, and repurchases of our common stock under our stock repurchase program, which we plan to resume as soon as practicable following this offering subject to market and economic conditions and applicable SEC rules. See "Use of Proceeds." Depositary Agent, Transfer Agent & Registrar Computershare, Inc. and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. will be the joint depositary agent, transfer agent and registrar for the Series A Preferred Stock. See the section entitled "Risk Factors" beginning on page S-13, as well as "Risk Factors" Risk Factors in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020, in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 and in other reports that we file with the SEC that are incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus for a discussion of matters you should consider before making a decision to invest in the depositary shares.

Summary Historical Financial Information

The following tables set forth selected historical consolidated and combined financial information. The selected historical information at March 31, 2021 and for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 is unaudited and has been derived from our unaudited historical condensed consolidated financial statements included in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021. The selected historical consolidated financial information at December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 has been derived from our historical consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP and are included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

The results for the three months ended March 31, 2021 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full fiscal year. Additionally, our historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results expected for any future period. You should read this information in conjunction with the information under "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and our historical consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto, which are included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 and in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021, each of which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, except that in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021, the second sentence of the third paragraph under the heading "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Capital Management" on page 75 is superseded for purposes of this prospectus supplement by the following sentence: For the first three months of 2021, net income of \$59.9 million, common stock issuances of \$2.8 million, and share-based compensation of \$2.8 million were offset by other comprehensive loss of \$49.6 million, cash dividends paid of \$27.0 million and common stock repurchased of \$3.2 million.

Condensed Consolidated and/or Combined Statements of Earnings Information

	Three Months Ended March 31,		Years Ended December 31.		
(\$ in thousands, except per share data)	2021	2020	2020	2019	2018
Interest Income	\$128,765	\$144,946	\$546,424	\$587,397	\$550,173
Interest Expense	8,196	18,980	50,102	89,682	63,821
Net Interest Income	120,569	125,966	496,322	497,715	486,352
Provision (Reversal) for Credit Losses	(14,300)	33,600	117,800	16,000	13,425
Noninterest Income	42,970	46,149	184,409	183,338	168,923
Noninterest Expense	98,865	96,312	373,807	379,227	371,624
Income Before Provision for Income Taxes	78,974	42,203	189,124	285,826	270,226
Provision for Income Taxes	19,025	7,461	35,320	59,913	50,624
Net Income	\$ 59,949	\$ 34,742	\$153,804	\$225,913	\$219,602
Per Share Data					
Basic Earnings	\$ 1.51	\$ 0.88	\$ 3.87	\$ 5.59	\$ 5.26
Diluted Earnings	1.50	0.87	3.86	5.56	5.23
Cash Dividends	0.67	0.67	2.68	2.59	2.34

	At March 31,	At December 31,	
(\$ in thousands)	2021	2020	2019
Assets:			
Interest-Bearing Deposits in Other Banks	\$ 4,506	\$ 1,646	\$ 4,979
Funds Sold	1,101,631	333,022	254,574
Investment Securities Available for Sale	4,024,763	3,791,689	2,619,003
Investment Securities Held to Maturity(1)	3,464,360	3,262,727	3,042,294
Loans Held for Sale	18,320	82,565	39,062
Net Loans and Leases	11,942,360	11,723,768	10,880,865
Total Earnings Assets	20,555,940	19,195,417	16,840,777
Cash and Due From Banks	286,717	279,420	299,105
Premises and Equipment, Net	198,107	199,695	188,388
Operating Lease Right-of-Use Assets	97,750	99,542	100,838
Accrued Interest Receivable	47,917	49,303	46,476
Foreclosed Real Estate	2,332	2,332	2,737
Mortgage Servicing Rights	22,320	19,652	25,022
Goodwill	31,517	31,517	31,517
Bank-Owned Life Insurance	291,764	291,480	287,962
Other Assets	412,907	435,293	272,674
	\$ 21,947,271	\$ 20,603,651	\$ 18,095,496
Liabilities:			
Deposits			
Noninterest-Bearing Demand	\$ 6,227,436	\$ 5,749,612	\$ 4,489,525
Interest-Bearing Demand	4,379,243	4,040,733	3,127,205
Savings	7,474,580	6,759,213	6,365,321
Time	1,475,392	1,662,063	1,802,431
	19,556,651	18,211,621	15,784,482
Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase	600,490	600,590	604,306
Other Debt	60,459	60,481	85,565
Operating Lease Liabilities	105,820	107,412	108,210
Retirement Benefits Payable	50,687	51,197	44,504
Accrued Interest Payable	4,109	5,117	8,040
Taxes Payable and Deferred Taxes	15,599	2,463	16,085
Other Liabilities	193,235	190,263	157,472
	20,587,050	19,229,144	16,808,664
Shareholders' Equity:			
Common stock (\$0.01 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized)(2)	580	580	579
Capital Surplus	594,804	591,360	582,566
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)	(41,787)	7,822	(31,112
Retained Earnings	1,844,057	1,811,979	1,761,415
Treasury Stock, at cost ⁽³⁾	(1,037,433)	(1,037,234)	(1,026,616
, ,	1,360,221	1,374,507	1,286,832
	\$ 21,947,271	\$ 20,603,651	\$ 18,095,496

⁽¹⁾ Fair Value: March 31, 2021 – \$3,477,346; December 31, 2020 – \$3,348,693; December 31, 2019 – \$3,062,882.

⁽²⁾ Issued / Outstanding: March 31, 2021 – 58,553,365 / 40,394,234; December 31, 2020 – 58,285,624 / 40,119,312; December 31, 2019 – 58,166,910 / 40,039,695.

⁽³⁾ Shares: March 31, 2021 – 18,159,131; December 31, 2020 – 18,166,312; December 31, 2019 – 18,127,215.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein and therein contain certain "forward-looking statements" as defined in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), which are subject to the "safe harbor" created by those sections. Words such as "expects," "anticipates," "believes," "estimates," "intends," "forecasts," "projects" and other similar expressions, as well as future or conditional verbs such as "will," "should," "would" and "could" are intended to help identify such forward-looking statements. These statements are not historical facts, but instead represent management's current expectations, plans or forecasts and are based on the beliefs and assumptions of management, and are subject to inherent uncertainties, risks and changes in circumstances that are difficult to predict and are often beyond our control. As a result, actual results could differ materially from those indicated in these forward-looking statements because of a variety of risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to:

- general economic conditions that either nationally, internationally, or locally may be different than expected, and particularly, any event that negatively impacts the tourism industry in Hawaii;
- the compounding effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, including reduced tourism in Hawaii, the duration and scope of government
 mandates or other limitations of or restrictions on travel, volatility in the international and national economy and credit markets,
 worker absenteeism, quarantines or other travel or health-related restrictions, the length and severity of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
 pace of recovery following the COVID-19 pandemic, and the effect of government, business and individual actions intended to
 mitigate the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic;
- changes in market interest rates that may affect credit markets and our ability to maintain our net interest margin;
- · changes in our credit quality or risk profile that may increase or decrease the required level of our reserve for credit losses;
- · the impact of legislative and regulatory initiatives;
- unanticipated changes in the securities markets, public debt markets, and other capital markets in the U.S. and internationally, including, without limitation, the anticipated elimination of the London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") as a benchmark interest rate:
- changes in fiscal and monetary policies of the markets in which we operate;
- the increased cost of maintaining or our ability to maintain adequate liquidity and capital, based on the requirements adopted by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision and U.S. regulators;
- · changes in accounting standards;
- changes in tax laws or regulations or the interpretation of such laws and regulations;
- any failure in or breach of our operational systems, information systems or infrastructure, or those of our merchants, third party vendors and other service providers;
- any interruption or breach of security of our information systems resulting in failures or disruptions in customer account management, general ledger processing, and loan or deposit systems;
- natural disasters, public unrest or adverse weather, public health, disease outbreaks, and other conditions impacting us and our customers' operations or negatively impacting the tourism industry in Hawaii;
- competitive pressures in the markets for financial services and products;

- actual or alleged conduct which could harm our reputation; and
- · the impact of litigation and regulatory investigations of us, including costs, expenses, settlements, and judgments.

See "Risk Factors" in this prospectus supplement and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020, as updated by our subsequent filings under the Exchange Act, including our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 and our Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendments thereof, for a further description of these and other factors. For the reasons described above, we caution you against relying on any forward-looking statements. You should not consider any list of such factors to be an exhaustive statement of all of the risks, uncertainties, or potentially inaccurate assumptions that could cause our current expectations or beliefs to change. Further, any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which it is made, and we undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which the statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as otherwise may be required by the federal securities laws.

RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following risks, as well as those included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020, in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 and in other reports that we file with the SEC that are incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, before making a decision to invest in the depositary shares. These risks could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations, liquidity, financial condition and prospects and cause the market price of the depositary shares to decline. You could lose part or all of your investment.

Risks Relating to This Offering

You are making an investment decision about both the depositary shares and the Series A Preferred Stock.

As described in this prospectus supplement, we are offering depositary shares representing fractional interests in the Series A Preferred Stock. The depositary will rely solely on the payments it receives on the Series A Preferred Stock to fund all payments on the depositary shares. You should carefully review the information in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus regarding both of these securities.

The Series A Preferred Stock will be an equity security and will be subordinate to our existing and future indebtedness, and our ability to pay dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock may be limited by regulatory policies and requirements.

The shares of Series A Preferred Stock will be equity interests in us and will not constitute indebtedness. This means that the depositary shares, which represent fractional interests in the Series A Preferred Stock, will rank junior to all existing and future indebtedness and other non-equity claims on us with respect to assets available to satisfy claims on us, including claims in the event of our liquidation. As of March 31, 2021, our total consolidated liabilities, including indebtedness and deposit liabilities (excluding, in each case, intercompany liabilities), were approximately \$20.6 billion, and total deposit liabilities (excluding intercompany balances) were approximately \$19.6 billion. We may incur additional liabilities (including indebtedness) in the future. Our existing and future indebtedness may restrict payment of dividends on, and redemption of, the Series A Preferred Stock.

Additionally, unlike indebtedness, where principal and interest customarily are payable on specified due dates, in the case of preferred stock like the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares), (1) dividends will be payable only if, when, and as declared by our Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of our Board of Directors, (2) dividends will not accumulate if they are not declared and (3) as a Delaware corporation, we may make dividend payments and redemption payments only out of funds legally available under Delaware law.

Also, as a bank holding company, our ability to declare and pay dividends is subject to various regulatory policies and requirements relating to capital actions. In particular, the federal banking agencies' capital rules set forth criteria for qualifying additional Tier 1 capital instruments, including that any dividends on such instruments only be paid out of a banking organization's net income, retained earnings and surplus related to other additional Tier 1 capital instruments. In addition, the Federal Reserve has the authority to prohibit bank holding companies, including us, from paying dividends if such payment would be an unsafe or unsound banking practice. The Federal Reserve has indicated generally that it may be an unsafe or unsound practice for a bank holding company to pay dividends on common stock and preferred stock unless the bank holding company's net income over the preceding year is sufficient to fund the dividends and the expected rate of earnings retention is consistent with the company's capital needs, asset quality and overall financial condition. These policies could

materially and adversely affect our ability to pay dividends or may result in additional limitations on our ability to pay dividends on or redeem shares of the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares). Furthermore, because we are a bank holding company, our rights and the rights of our creditors and our shareholders, including the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock, to participate in the assets of any of our subsidiaries, upon that subsidiary's liquidation, receivership or recapitalization may be subject to the prior claims of that subsidiary's receiver or creditors, except to the extent that we are a creditor with recognized claims against the subsidiary, and any preferred equity holders of such subsidiary.

Further, the Federal Reserve's capital rules include a capital conservation buffer. The buffer can be satisfied only with common equity Tier 1, or "CET1," capital. If our capital ratios do not satisfy minimum requirements plus the capital conservation buffer, we will face graduated constraints on, among other things, capital distributions (including dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares)) based on the amount of the shortfall and the amount of "eligible retained income" (i.e. the greater of (i) net income for the four preceding quarters, net of distributions and associated tax effects not reflected in net income; and (ii) the average of all net income over the preceding four quarters). If we do not achieve applicable Basel III capital ratio requirements, including the capital conservation buffer, we may not be able to pay dividends on our common stock and preferred stock, including with respect to the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares). Although we currently expect to meet applicable Basel III capital ratio requirements, inclusive of the capital conservation buffer, we cannot be sure that we will meet those requirements in the future or that even if we do, we will be able to pay dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares).

The Series A Preferred Stock places no restrictions on our business or operations or on our ability to incur indebtedness or engage in any transactions, subject only to the limited voting rights referred to below under "Description of the Series A Preferred Stock—Voting Rights" beginning on page S-26 of this prospectus supplement.

The Series A Preferred Stock may be junior in rights and preferences to our future preferred stock, including senior stock authorized and issued without your consent.

The Series A Preferred Stock may rank junior to preferred stock issued in the future that by its terms is expressly senior in rights and preferences to the Series A Preferred Stock. It is possible that we may authorize and issue such shares without your vote or consent, although the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all outstanding shares of the Series A Preferred Stock is required to authorize or issue any shares of senior stock as described under "Description of the Series A Preferred Stock—Voting Rights—Other Voting Rights." In addition, the terms of any of our future preferred stock expressly senior to the Series A Preferred Stock may restrict dividend payments on the Series A Preferred Stock, except for dividends payable solely in shares of the Series A Preferred Stock. Unless full dividends for all of our outstanding preferred stock senior to the Series A Preferred Stock have been paid in full or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof has been set aside for payment, no dividends will be declared or paid and no distribution will be made on any shares of the Series A Preferred Stock, and no shares of the Series A Preferred Stock may be repurchased, redeemed, or otherwise acquired by us, directly or indirectly, for consideration. This could result in dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock not being paid when due to you.

Dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock are discretionary and non-cumulative.

Dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock are discretionary and will not be cumulative. If our Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of our Board of Directors does not declare a dividend on the Series A Preferred Stock in respect of a dividend period, then no dividend shall be deemed to have accrued for such dividend period, be payable on the applicable dividend payment date or be cumulative, and we will have no obligation to pay any dividend for that dividend period, whether or not our Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of our Board of Directors declares a dividend on the Series A Preferred Stock for any future dividend period.

Additionally, when dividends are not paid in full upon the Series A Preferred Stock and parity stock, if any, for the immediately preceding period and, in the case of parity stock entitled to cumulative dividends, the related prior periods, all dividends declared upon the Series A Preferred Stock and parity stock, if any, will be declared on a proportional basis so that the amount of dividends declared per share will bear to each other the same ratio that accrued dividends for the then-current dividend period per share on Series A Preferred Stock, and accrued dividends, including any accumulations, if any, on parity stock, if any, on a per share basis for the related prior periods, as the case may be, bear to each other. Therefore, if we are not paying full dividends on any outstanding parity stock, we will not be able to pay full dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock.

Credit ratings may not reflect all risks associated with an investment in the Series A Preferred Stock and the depositary shares.

Credit rating agencies rate the Series A Preferred Stock and the depositary shares on factors that include our results of operations and cash flows, actions that we take, their view of the general outlook for our industry and their view of the general outlook for the economy. Actions taken by the rating agencies can include maintaining, upgrading, downgrading or withdrawing the current rating or assigning a negative outlook for our rating or placing us on a watch list for possible future downgrading or withdrawing the credit rating of our depositary shares, assigning a negative outlook to our rating or placing us on a watch list for possible future downgrading would likely increase our cost of financing, limit our access to the capital markets and have an adverse effect on the market price of our securities, including the depositary shares offered hereby.

Ratings only reflect the views of the issuing rating agency or agencies and such ratings could at any time be revised downward, withdrawn entirely, assigned a negative outlook or placed on a watch list at the discretion of the issuing rating agency. Further, a rating is not a recommendation to purchase, sell or hold any particular security, including the depositary shares. In addition, ratings do not reflect market prices or suitability of a security for a particular investor and any rating of the depositary shares or the Series A Preferred Stock may not reflect all risks related to us and our business, or the structure or market value of the depositary shares.

The Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares) may be redeemed at our option, and you may not be able to reinvest the redemption price you receive in a comparable security at the same or higher yield.

Subject to the approval of the Federal Reserve (if then required), at our option, we may redeem the Series A Preferred Stock at any time in whole, but not in part, upon the occurrence of a "regulatory capital treatment event," such as a proposed change in law or regulation after the initial issuance date with respect to whether the Series A Preferred Stock qualifies as a Tier 1 capital instrument. We may also redeem the Series A Preferred Stock at our option, either in whole or in part, from time to time on any dividend payment date on or after August 1, 2026, subject to the approval of the Federal Reserve (if then required). If we redeem the Series A Preferred Stock, the depositary will redeem the related number of depositary shares and, as a result, you may not be able to reinvest the redemption price you receive in a comparable security at the same or higher yield. Under current U.S. federal income tax law, the redemption of the depositary shares generally would be a taxable event to you. See "Description of the Series A Preferred Stock—Redemption" beginning on page S-24, "Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences—U.S. Holders—Redemptions of the Depositary Shares" beginning on page S-36, and "Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences—Non-U.S. Holders—Sale, Exchange, or Certain Other Taxable Dispositions of the Depositary Shares" beginning on page S-38 for more information on redemption of the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares).

Investors should not expect us to redeem the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares) on the initial date it becomes redeemable or on any particular date after it becomes redeemable.

The Series A Preferred Stock has no maturity date and we are not required to redeem or repurchase, nor are the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock or depositary shares entitled to require that we redeem, the Series A

Preferred Stock or the depositary shares. The Series A Preferred Stock may be redeemed by us at our option, subject to regulatory approval (if then required), either in whole or in part, from time to time, on any dividend payment date on or after August 1, 2026. The Series A Preferred Stock may also be redeemed by us at our option, subject to regulatory approval (if then required), in whole, but not in part, at any time within 90 days following a "regulatory capital treatment event" as described herein. Upon any such redemption, the related depositary shares will also be redeemed. Any decision we may make at any time to propose a redemption of the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares) will depend upon, among other things, our evaluation of our capital position, the composition of our stockholders' equity and general market conditions at that time. Holders of the depositary shares should not expect us to redeem the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares) on the initial date it becomes redeemable or on any particular date after it becomes redeemable. Accordingly, the Series A Preferred Stock and depositary shares will remain outstanding indefinitely unless and until we decide to exercise our redemption option and receive the prior approval of the Federal Reserve.

Our right to redeem the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares) is subject to certain limitations, including any required approval of the Federal Reserve.

Our right to redeem the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares) is subject to limitations. Under the Federal Reserve's current capital adequacy regulations and policies applicable to bank holding companies, any redemption of the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares) is subject to prior approval of the Federal Reserve. Additionally, prior to redeeming the Series A Preferred Stock or immediately afterward, we must either replace the redeemed Series A Preferred Stock with an equal amount of Tier 1 capital instruments or demonstrate to the Federal Reserve's satisfaction that following redemption, we will continue to hold capital commensurate with our risks. We cannot assure you that the Federal Reserve will approve any redemption of the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares) that we may propose.

Our ability to receive dividends and other distributions from our subsidiaries could affect our liquidity and ability to pay dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares).

We are a separate and distinct legal entity from our subsidiaries. We anticipate that dividends and other distributions to us from our direct and indirect subsidiaries (including the Bank) will represent a major source of funds for us to pay dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares), make payments on corporate debt securities and meet other obligations. There are various federal and state law limitations on the extent to which the Bank can finance or otherwise supply funds to us through dividends and loans. These limitations include capital adequacy regulations and policies of the Bank's regulators generally and specifically the Federal Reserve, Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco and the State of Hawaii Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs' Division of Financial Institutions, Prompt Corrective Action regulations, federal banking law requirements concerning the payment of dividends out of net profits or surplus, Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and Regulation W governing transactions between an insured depository institution and its affiliates, as well as general federal and state regulatory oversight to prevent unsafe or unsound practices. If the earnings of our subsidiaries are not sufficient to make dividend payments to us while maintaining adequate capital levels, our liquidity may be affected and we may not be able to make dividend payments to holders of the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares), make payments on outstanding corporate debt securities or meet other obligations, each and any of which could have a material adverse impact on our business, results of operations, liquidity, financial condition or prospects.

Holders of the Series A Preferred Stock and the depositary shares will have limited voting rights.

Holders of the Series A Preferred Stock and, in turn, the depositary shares will have no voting rights with respect to matters that generally require the approval of voting shareholders. Holders of the Series A Preferred Stock will have voting rights only with respect to authorizing or increasing the amount of any equity security

ranking senior to the Series A Preferred Stock, certain changes in terms of the Series A Preferred Stock, certain nonpayment of dividends and as otherwise required by applicable law. See "Description of the Series A Preferred Stock—Voting Rights" beginning on page S-26 of this prospectus supplement.

Holders of depositary shares must act through the depositary to exercise any voting rights of the Series A Preferred Stock. Although each depositary share is entitled to 1/40th of a vote, the depositary can only vote whole shares of Series A Preferred Stock. While the depositary will vote the maximum number of whole shares of Series A Preferred Stock in accordance with the instruction it receives, any remaining votes of holders of the depositary shares will not be voted.

Offerings of debt, which is senior to the Series A Preferred Stock upon liquidation, may adversely affect the market price of our depositary shares.

We may attempt to increase our capital resources in the future or, if our regulatory capital or liquidity ratios fall below the required minimums, we could be forced to raise additional capital or liquidity by obtaining loans or making additional offerings of debt or equity securities, including senior or subordinated notes, preferred stock and common stock, which may adversely affect the market price of the depositary shares. Upon liquidation, holders of our debt securities and lenders with respect to other borrowings will receive distributions of our available assets prior to the holders of our Series A Preferred Stock and, in turn, the depositary shares.

We cannot assure you that a liquid trading market for the depositary shares will develop or be maintained or be liquid, and you may find it difficult to sell your depositary shares.

The depositary shares are a new issue of securities with no established trading market. We will apply to list the depositary shares on the NYSE under the symbol "BOHPrA." However, there is no guarantee that we will be able to list the depositary shares. If approved, we expect trading of the depositary shares on the NYSE to begin within the 30-day period after the original issue date. Even if the depositary shares are listed, there may be little or no secondary market for the depositary shares. The underwriters have advised us that they intend to make a market in the depositary shares. However, they are not obligated to do so and may discontinue any market making in the depositary shares at any time in their sole discretion. Even if a secondary market for the depositary shares develops, it may not be maintained and it may not provide significant liquidity and transaction costs in any secondary market could be high. As a result, the difference between bid and asked prices in any secondary market could be substantial. We cannot assure you that you will be able to sell your depositary shares at a particular time or that the price you receive when you sell will be favorable.

The amount of your liquidation preference is fixed and you have no right to receive any greater payment.

The payment upon liquidation is fixed at the liquidation preference of \$25 per depositary share, plus an amount equal to all declared and unpaid dividends thereon, without accumulation of any undeclared dividends, to, but not including, the date of liquidation. If, in the case of our liquidation, there are remaining assets to be distributed after payment of this amount, you have no right to receive or to participate in these amounts. In addition, if the market price of your depositary shares is greater than the liquidation preference, you have no right to receive the market price from us upon our liquidation.

General market conditions and unpredictable factors could adversely affect the future market price for the depositary shares.

The future market price of the depositary shares will depend on many factors, including:

- whether we declare or fail to declare dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares) from time to time;
- our operating performance, liquidity, financial condition, business and prospects, or the operating performance, liquidity, financial condition, business and prospects of our competitors;

- our creditworthiness;
- the ratings given to our securities by credit-rating agencies, including the ratings given to the Series A Preferred Stock or depositary shares;
- prevailing interest rates;
- economic, financial, geopolitical, regulatory or judicial events affecting us or the financial markets generally (including the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic); and
- the market for similar securities.

Accordingly, the depositary shares may trade at a discount to the price per share paid for such shares even if a secondary market for the depositary shares develops.

Additional issuances of preferred stock or securities convertible into preferred stock may further dilute existing holders of our depositary shares.

We may, in the future, determine that it is advisable, or we may encounter circumstances where we determine it is necessary, to issue additional shares of preferred stock, securities convertible into, exchangeable for or that represent an interest in preferred stock, or preferred stock-equivalent securities to fund strategic initiatives or other business needs or to build additional capital. Our Board of Directors is authorized to cause us to issue one or more classes or series of preferred stock from time to time and to set the terms of such classes or series of preferred stock, including voting rights, dividend rights, and preferences, in each case without common shareholder approval but subject to the approval of the requisite number of holders of depositary shares representing interests in the Series A Preferred Stock in case of issuance of any equity security ranking senior to the Series A Preferred Stock. If we issue preferred stock in the future that has preference over the Series A Preferred Stock with respect to the payment of dividends or upon liquidation, or if we issue preferred stock with voting rights that dilute the voting power of the Series A Preferred Stock or depositary shares, the rights of holders of the depositary shares or the market price of the depositary shares could decline as a result of such offering or other offerings, as well as other sales of a large block of depositary shares, Series A Preferred Stock or similar securities in the market thereafter, or the perception that such sales could occur.

Holders of depositary shares may not be entitled to the dividends-received deduction or reduced rates applicable to qualified dividend income.

Distributions paid to corporate U.S. holders of the depositary shares may be eligible for the dividends-received deduction and distributions paid to non-corporate U.S. holders of the depositary shares may be subject to tax at the preferential tax rates applicable to "qualified dividend income" if we have current or accumulated earnings and profits, as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Although we presently have accumulated earnings and profits, we may not have sufficient current or accumulated earnings and profits during future fiscal years for the distributions on the Series A Preferred Stock (and related depositary shares) to qualify as dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes. If any distributions on the Series A Preferred Stock (and related depositary shares) with respect to any fiscal year are not eligible for the dividends-received deduction or for the preferential tax rates applicable to "qualified dividend income" because of insufficient current or accumulated earnings and profits, the market value of the depositary shares may decline.

USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that the net proceeds to us from the sale of depositary shares in this offering, after deducting the underwriting discount and estimated offering expenses payable by us, will be approximately \$175.5 million. We intend to use the net proceeds from our sale of the depositary shares in this offering for general corporate purposes, which may include supporting asset growth, and repurchases of our common stock under our stock repurchase program, which we plan to resume as soon as practicable following this offering subject to market and economic conditions and applicable SEC rules.

CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our capitalization and capital ratios as of March 31, 2021 (i) on an actual basis and (ii) on an as adjusted basis to give effect to the sale of 7,200,000 depositary shares, representing shares of Series A Preferred Stock, by us in this offering after the underwriting discount and estimated offering expenses payable by us. You should read this table in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

	As of March 31, 2021		
(In thousands, except share amounts)	Actual	As Adjusted	
Capitalization			
Shareholders' Equity			
Preferred Stock, 4.375% Fixed Rate Non-Cumulative Perpetual			
Series A, \$0.01 par value, \$1,000 liquidation preference per share;			
180,000 shares issued and outstanding	_	180,000	
Common Stock, par value \$0.01 per share, 500,000,000 shares			
authorized, 40,394,234 shares outstanding	580	580	
Treasury Stock, at cost: 18,159,131 shares	(1,037,433)	(1,037,433)	
Capital Surplus	594,804	590,267	
Retained Earnings	1,844,057	1,844,057	
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)	(41,787)	(41,787)	
Total Shareholders' Equity	\$ 1,360,221	\$ 1,535,684	
Capital Ratios			
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio	12.35%	12.35%	
Tier 1 Capital Ratio	12.35%	13.91%	
Total Capital Ratio	13.61%	15.16%	
Tier 1 Leverage Ratio	6.61%	7.43%	

DESCRIPTION OF THE SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK

The following description supplements and, to the extent it is inconsistent, supersedes the description of the general provisions of our preferred stock set forth in the accompanying prospectus. As used in this description of the Series A Preferred Stock, "we," "our," "us," "the Issuer" or "Bank of Hawaii Corporation" refers to Bank of Hawaii Corporation and not to any of our subsidiaries. The following description is qualified in its entirety by the Certificate of Designations relating to the Series A Preferred Stock (the "Certificate of Designations"), and where this description is inconsistent with the description of the Preferred Stock contained in the accompanying prospectus or the description of the Series A Preferred Stock in the Certificate of Designations, the Certificate of Designations will control.

General

The Series A Preferred Stock is a single series of our authorized preferred stock. We are offering 7,200,000 depositary shares, representing 180,000 shares of the Series A Preferred Stock, by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. Shares of the Series A Preferred Stock, upon issuance against full payment of the purchase price for the depositary shares, will be fully paid and nonassessable. The depositary will be the sole holder of shares of the Series A Preferred Stock. The holders of depositary shares will be required to exercise their proportional rights in the Series A Preferred Stock through the depositary, as described in the section entitled "Description of Depositary Shares" beginning on page S-29 in this prospectus supplement.

Shares of the Series A Preferred Stock will rank, with respect to the payment of dividends and distributions of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, respectively: (i) senior to our common stock and any other class or series of stock we may issue in the future that, by its terms, is junior to the Series A Preferred Stock; (ii) junior to any of our existing and future indebtedness; and (iii) at least equally with each other series of preferred stock we may issue if provided for in the certificate of designations relating to such preferred stock or otherwise (except for any senior stock that may be issued with the consent of the requisite number of holders of the Series A Preferred Stock and all other parity stock, if any). See "Voting Rights—Other Voting Rights" below. In addition, we will generally be able to pay dividends and distributions upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up only out of lawfully available assets for such payment (after satisfaction of all claims for indebtedness and other non-equity claims).

The Series A Preferred Stock will not be convertible into, or exchangeable for, shares of any other class or series of our stock or other securities. The Series A Preferred Stock has no stated maturity and will not be subject to any sinking fund or other obligation of us to redeem or repurchase the Series A Preferred Stock. The Series A Preferred Stock represents non-withdrawable capital, will not be an account of an insurable type, and will not be insured or guaranteed by the FDIC or any other governmental agency or instrumentality.

We reserve the right to re-open this series of preferred stock and issue additional shares of the Series A Preferred Stock either through public or private sales at any time and from time to time without notice to, or consent of holders of, the Series A Preferred Stock or the depositary shares, provided that such additional shares of Series A Preferred Stock will only be issued if they are fungible with the original shares for tax purposes and such additional shares shall only be entitled to dividends declared on or after the date they are issued. The additional shares of Series A Preferred Stock and related depositary shares would form a single series with the Series A Preferred Stock and related depositary shares, respectively, offered by this prospectus supplement. In addition, we may from time to time, without notice to, or consent of, holders of the Series A Preferred Stock or the depositary shares, issue additional shares of preferred stock that rank equally with or junior to the Series A Preferred Stock.

Dividends

General

Dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock will not be cumulative or mandatory. If our Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of our Board of Directors does not declare a dividend on the Series A Preferred Stock in respect of a dividend period, then no dividend shall be deemed to have accrued for such dividend period, be payable on the applicable dividend payment date, or be cumulative, and we will have no obligation to pay any dividends for that dividend period, whether or not our Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of our Board of Directors declares a dividend on the Series A Preferred Stock for any future dividend period. A dividend period is the period from and including a dividend payment date to but excluding the next dividend payment date, except that the initial dividend period will commence on and include the original issue date of the Series A Preferred Stock.

Holders of Series A Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive, if, when and as declared by our Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of our Board of Directors, out of assets legally available for the payment of dividends under Delaware law, non-cumulative cash dividends based on the liquidation preference of the Series A Preferred Stock at a rate equal to 4.375% per annum for each quarterly dividend period from the original issue date of the depositary shares through the redemption date of the Series A Preferred Stock, if any. Dividends payable on the Series A Preferred Stock will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months.

In the event that we issue additional shares of Series A Preferred Stock after the original issue date, dividends on such shares will accrue from the original issue date of such additional shares.

If declared by our Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of our Board of Directors, we will pay dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock quarterly in arrears on February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1 of each year, beginning on August 1, 2021 (each such date, a "dividend payment date"). If any date on which dividends would otherwise be payable is not a business day, then the dividend payment date will be the next business day without any adjustment to the amount of dividends paid. A business day means any weekday that is neither a legal holiday in New York, New York or Honolulu, Hawaii or a day on which banking institutions in New York, New York or Honolulu, Hawaii are authorized or required to be closed.

Dividends will be payable to holders of record of Series A Preferred Stock as they appear on our stock register on the applicable record date, which shall be the 15th calendar day before the applicable dividend payment date, or such other record date, not exceeding 30 days before the applicable payment date, as shall be fixed by our Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of our Board of Directors. The corresponding record dates for the depositary shares will be the same as the record dates for the Series A Preferred Stock.

Dollar amounts resulting from that calculation will be rounded to the nearest cent, with one-half cent being rounded upward. Dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock will cease to accrue on the redemption date, if any, as described below under "—Redemption—Redemption Procedures" on page S-24, unless we default in the payment of the redemption price of the shares of the Series A Preferred Stock called for redemption.

Additional Information

Our ability to pay dividends in the future is subject to bank regulatory requirements, including (but not limited to) capital adequacy regulations and policies established by the Federal Reserve.

So long as any share of Series A Preferred Stock remains outstanding, (1) no dividend will be declared or paid or set aside for payment and no distribution will be declared or made or set aside for payment on any junior stock (including, without limitation, our common stock) (other than (i) a dividend payable solely in junior stock or (ii) any dividend in connection with the implementation of a shareholders' rights plan, or the redemption or

repurchase of any rights under any such plan), (2) no shares of junior stock shall be repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by us, directly or indirectly, nor shall any monies be paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the redemption of any such shares by us (other than (i) as a result of a reclassification of junior stock for or into other junior stock, (ii) the exchange or conversion of one share of junior stock for or into another share of junior stock, (iii) through the use of the proceeds of a substantially contemporaneous sale of other shares of junior stock, (iv) purchases, redemptions or other acquisitions of shares of the junior stock in connection with any employment contract, benefit plan or other similar arrangement with or for the benefit of employees, officers, directors or consultants, or (v) the purchase of fractional interests in shares of junior stock pursuant to the conversion or exchange provisions of such stock or the security being converted or exchanged) and (3) no shares of parity stock, if any, shall be repurchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by us, directly or indirectly (nor shall any monies be paid to or made available for a sinking fund for the redemption of any such shares by us), during a dividend period (other than (i) pursuant to *pro rata* actions applicable to the Series A Preferred Stock and such parity stock, if any, (ii) as a result of a reclassification of parity stock for or into other parity stock, (iii) the exchange or conversion of parity stock for or into other parity stock or junior stock, (iv) through the use of the proceeds of a substantially contemporaneous sale of other shares of parity stock, or (v) the purchase of fractional interests in shares of parity stock pursuant to the conversion or exchange provisions of such stock or the security being converted or exchanged), unless, in each case, the full dividends for the immediately preceding dividend period on all outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock

We will not declare or pay or set apart funds for the payment of dividends on any securities which rank equally with the Series A Preferred Stock, if any, unless we have paid or set apart funds for the payment of dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock. When dividends are not paid in full upon the shares of Series A Preferred Stock and parity stock and parity stock, if any, for the immediately preceding period and, in the case of parity stock entitled to cumulative dividends, the related prior periods, all dividends declared upon shares of Series A Preferred Stock and parity stock, if any, will be declared on a proportional basis so that the amount of dividends declared per share will bear to each other the same ratio that accrued dividends for the then-current dividend period per share on Series A Preferred Stock, and accrued dividends, including any accumulations, if any, on parity stock, if any, on a per share basis for the related prior periods, as the case may be, bear to each other.

As used in this prospectus supplement, "junior stock" means our common stock and any other class or series of our stock hereafter authorized over which Series A Preferred Stock has preference or priority in the payment of dividends or in the distribution of assets on our liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

As used in this prospectus supplement, "parity stock" means any other class or series of our stock that ranks on a parity with the Series A Preferred Stock in the payment of dividends and in the distribution of assets on our liquidation, dissolution or winding up. As of the date of this prospectus supplement, there are no shares of parity stock outstanding.

As used in this prospectus supplement, "senior stock" means any other class or series of our stock ranking senior to the Series A Preferred Stock with respect to payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up. As of the date of this prospectus supplement, there are no shares of senior stock outstanding.

Subject to the considerations described above, and not otherwise, dividends (payable in cash, stock or otherwise), as may be determined by our Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of our Board of Directors, may be declared and paid on our common stock and any other stock ranking equally with or junior to the Series A Preferred Stock from time to time out of any funds legally available for such payment, and the holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to participate in any such dividend.

Dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock will not be declared, paid or set aside for payment to the extent such act would cause us to fail to comply with applicable laws and regulations, including applicable capital adequacy regulations and policies of the Federal Reserve.

Redemption

Optional Redemption

The Series A Preferred Stock is not subject to any mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar provisions. We may redeem the Series A Preferred Stock at our option, subject to regulatory approval (if then required), in whole or in part, from time to time, on any dividend payment date on or after August 1, 2026, at a redemption price equal to \$1,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per depositary share), plus any declared and unpaid dividends. Neither the holders of Series A Preferred Stock nor holders of depositary shares will have the right to require the redemption or repurchase of the Series A Preferred Stock.

Redemption Following a Regulatory Capital Treatment Event

Subject to regulatory approval (if then required), we may redeem shares of the Series A Preferred Stock at any time within 90 days following a regulatory capital treatment event, in whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal to \$1,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per depositary share), plus any declared and unpaid dividends for prior dividend periods and accrued but unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) for the then-current dividend period prior to, but excluding, the redemption date. A "regulatory capital treatment event" means our good faith determination that, as a result of: (i) any amendment to, or change (including any announced prospective change) in, the laws or regulations of the United States or any political subdivision of or in the United States that is enacted or becomes effective after the original issue date of any share of Series A Preferred Stock; (ii) any proposed change in those laws or regulations that is announced or becomes effective after the original issue date of any share of Series A Preferred Stock; or (iii) any official administrative decision or judicial decision or administrative action or other official pronouncement interpreting or applying those laws or regulations that is announced after the original issue date of any share of Series A Preferred Stock, there is more than an insubstantial risk that we will not be entitled to treat the full liquidation preference of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock then outstanding as Tier 1 capital (or its equivalent) for purposes of the Federal Reserve's capital adequacy regulations and policies (or, as and if applicable, the capital adequacy regulations and policies of any successor appropriate federal banking regulator or agency), as then in effect and applicable, for as long as any share of Series A Preferred Stock is outstanding. Dividends will cease to accrue on those shares on the redemption date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, we may not redeem shares of the Series A Preferred Stock without having received the prior ap

Redemption Procedures

If shares of the Series A Preferred Stock are to be redeemed, the notice of redemption shall be sent to the holders of record of the Series A Preferred Stock to be redeemed not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption thereof (provided that, if the depositary shares representing the Series A Preferred Stock are held in book-entry form through DTC, we may give such notice in any manner permitted by DTC). Each notice of redemption will include a statement setting forth:

- the redemption date;
- the number of shares of the Series A Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if less than all the shares held by the holder are to be redeemed, the number of shares of Series A Preferred Stock to be redeemed from the holder;
- · the redemption price; and
- the place or places where the certificates evidencing shares of Series A Preferred Stock are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price.

On and after the redemption date, dividends will cease to accrue on shares of Series A Preferred Stock, and such shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights of the holders of such shares will terminate, including rights described under "—Voting Rights" below, except the right to receive the redemption price, including any unpaid dividends. See "Description of Depositary Shares" beginning on page S-29 of this prospectus supplement for information about redemption of the depositary shares relating to the Series A Preferred Stock.

In case of any redemption of only part of the shares of the Series A Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the shares to be redeemed shall be selected *pro rata* or by lot or in such other manner determined by us to be fair and equitable. For depositary shares held in book-entry form, see "Book-Entry Procedures and Settlement" beginning on page S-32 of this prospectus supplement.

Under the Federal Reserve's current capital adequacy regulations applicable to bank holding companies, any redemption of the Series A Preferred Stock is subject to prior approval by the Federal Reserve and we must either replace the shares to be redeemed with an equal amount of Tier 1 capital instruments or demonstrate to the Federal Reserve that we will continue to hold capital commensurate with our risk. See "Risk Factors—Our right to redeem the Series A Preferred Stock (and indirectly the depositary shares) is subject to certain limitations, including any required approval of the Federal Reserve" on page S-16 in this prospectus supplement. Any redemption of the Series A Preferred Stock is subject to our receipt of any required prior approval by the Federal Reserve and to the satisfaction of any conditions set forth in the capital adequacy regulations and policies of the Federal Reserve applicable to redemption of the Series A Preferred Stock.

Neither the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock nor the holders of the related depositary shares have the right to require the redemption or repurchase of the Series A Preferred Stock, nor should such holders expect us to redeem the Series A Preferred Stock or the depositary shares on the date the Series A Preferred Stock initially becomes redeemable or at any time thereafter.

Liquidation Rights

In the event we liquidate, dissolve or wind-up our business and affairs, either voluntarily or involuntarily, holders of the Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to receive a liquidating distribution of \$1,000 per share (equivalent to \$25 per depositary share), plus any declared and unpaid dividends, without accumulation of any undeclared dividends, before we make any distribution of assets to the holders of our common stock or any other class or series of shares ranking junior to the Series A Preferred Stock. Holders of the Series A Preferred Stock will not be entitled to any other amounts from us after they have received their full liquidating distribution.

In any such distribution, if our assets are not sufficient to pay the liquidation preferences plus declared and unpaid dividends in full to all holders of the Series A Preferred Stock and all holders of parity stock, if any, as to such distribution with the Series A Preferred Stock, the amounts paid to the holders of Series A Preferred Stock and parity stock, if any, will be paid *pro rata* in accordance with the respective aggregate liquidating distribution owed to those holders. If the liquidation preference plus declared and unpaid dividends has been paid in full to all holders of Series A Preferred Stock and parity stock, if any, the holders of our junior stock shall be entitled to receive all of our remaining assets according to their respective rights and preferences.

In addition, we will generally be able to pay dividends and distributions upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up only out of lawfully available assets for such payment (after satisfaction of all claims for indebtedness and other non-equity claims).

For purposes of this section, our merger or consolidation with any other entity, including a merger or consolidation in which the holders of Series A Preferred Stock receive cash, securities or property for their shares, or the sale, lease or exchange of all or substantially all of our assets for cash, securities or other property, shall not constitute our liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

Because we are a holding company, our rights and the rights of our creditors and our shareholders, including the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock, to participate in the assets of any of our subsidiaries, upon that subsidiary's liquidation or recapitalization may be subject to the prior claims of that subsidiary's creditors, except to the extent that we are a creditor with recognized claims against the subsidiary, and any preferred equityholders of such subsidiary.

Voting Rights

Except as provided below, the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock will have no voting rights.

Right to Elect Two Directors upon Nonpayment

If we fail to pay, or declare and set apart for payment, dividends on outstanding shares of the Series A Preferred Stock for six quarterly dividend periods, whether or not consecutive (a "Nonpayment Event"), the number of directors on our Board of Directors shall automatically be increased by two. The holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall have the right, together with holders of any other equally ranked series of preferred stock that have similar voting rights, if any ("Voting Parity Stock"), voting together as a single class in proportion to their respective liquidation preferences, by a plurality of the votes cast, to elect two additional members of our Board of Directors (the "Preferred Stock Directors") to fill such newly created directorships. Our Board of Directors shall at no time include more than two Preferred Stock Directors, including all directors that the holders of any series of Voting Parity Stock are entitled to elect pursuant to voting rights.

In the event that the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock and any Voting Parity Stock shall be entitled to vote for the election of Preferred Stock Directors following a Nonpayment Event, such directors shall be initially elected at a special meeting called at the request of record holders owning shares representing at least 20% of the combined liquidation preferences of all shares of Series A Preferred Stock and each series of Voting Parity Stock then outstanding, voting together as a single class in proportion to their respective liquidation preferences (unless the request for a special meeting is received less than 90 days before the date fixed for our next annual or special meeting of our shareholders, in which event such election shall be held only at such next annual or special meeting of shareholders), and subsequently at each annual meeting of our shareholders. Any request to call a special meeting for the initial election of Preferred Stock Directors after a Nonpayment Event must be made by written notice, signed by the requisite holders of Series A Preferred Stock and/or Voting Parity Stock, and delivered to our Corporate Secretary in person, by first class mail or in any other manner permitted by our charter or bylaws or by applicable law. If our Secretary fails to call a special meeting for the election of Preferred Stock Directors within 20 days of receiving proper notice, any holder of Series A Preferred Stock may call such a meeting at our expense solely for the election of Preferred Stock Directors elected at any such special meeting will hold office until the next annual meeting of our shareholders if such office shall not have been previously terminated as below provided. The holders of Series A Preferred Stock will not have the right to cumulate votes for the election of Preferred Stock Directors.

Any Preferred Stock Director may be removed at any time without cause by the holders of record of shares of Series A Preferred Stock and Voting Parity Stock, representing a majority of the combined liquidation preferences of the Series A Preferred Stock and each series of Voting Parity Stock then outstanding, when they have the voting rights described above (voting together as a single class in proportion to their respective liquidation preferences). If any vacancy occurs among the Preferred Stock Directors, a successor will be elected by the then-remaining Preferred Stock Director or, if no Preferred Stock Director remains in office, by a plurality of the votes cast by the holders of the outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock and Voting Parity Stock, when they have the voting rights described above (voting together as a single class in proportion to their respective liquidation preferences). The Preferred Stock Directors will each be entitled to one vote per director on any matter that shall come before our Board of Directors for a vote.

When dividends have been paid in full on the Series A Preferred Stock for at least four consecutive quarterly dividend periods, then the right of the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock to elect the Preferred

Stock Directors shall terminate (but will revest upon the occurrence of any future Nonpayment Event), and, if and when any rights of holders of the Series A Preferred Stock and Voting Parity Stock to elect Preferred Stock Directors have terminated, the terms of office of all Preferred Stock Directors will immediately terminate and the number of directors shall automatically be reduced accordingly.

In addition, if and when the rights of holders of Series A Preferred Stock terminate for any reason, including under circumstances described above under "—Redemption," such voting rights shall terminate along with the other rights (except, if applicable, the right to receive the redemption price, including any unpaid dividends), and the terms of any additional directors elected by the holders of Series A Preferred Stock and Voting Parity Stock, shall terminate automatically and the number of directors reduced by two, assuming that the rights of holders of Voting Parity Stock have similarly terminated.

Under regulations adopted by the Federal Reserve, if the holders of any series of preferred stock are or become entitled to vote separately for the election of directors as a class, such series, along with any other holders of stock that are entitled to vote for the election of directors with that series, will be deemed a class of voting securities. A company holding 25% or more of that class, or less if it otherwise has the power to directly or indirectly exercise a "controlling influence" over our management or policies, will be required to obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve and be subject to regulation as a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (the "BHC Act") in order to acquire or retain those shares. In addition, at the time such series is deemed a class of voting securities, any other bank holding company will be required to obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve under the BHC Act to acquire or retain more than 5% of that class. Any other person (other than a bank holding company) will generally be required to obtain the non-objection of the Federal Reserve under the Change in Bank Control Act of 1978, as amended, to acquire or retain 10% or more of that class.

Other Voting Rights

So long as any shares of Series A Preferred Stock remain outstanding, the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of all outstanding shares of the Series A Preferred Stock, voting separately as a class, shall be required to:

- authorize or increase the authorized amount of, or issue shares of, any class or series of senior stock, or issue any obligation or security convertible into or evidencing the right to purchase any such shares;
- amend the provisions of our charter (including the Certificate of Designations creating the Series A Preferred Stock) so as to adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of the Series A Preferred Stock, taken as a whole; provided, however, that any increase in the amount of the authorized or issued Series A Preferred Stock or authorized common stock or preferred stock or the creation and issuance, or an increase in the authorized or issued amount, of other series of preferred stock ranking equally with or junior to the Series A Preferred Stock with respect to the payment of dividends (whether such dividends are cumulative or non-cumulative) or the distribution of assets upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up will not be deemed to adversely affect the powers, preferences, privileges or rights of the Series A Preferred Stock; or
- consummate a binding share-exchange or reclassification involving the Series A Preferred Stock, or a merger or our consolidation with or
 into another entity unless (i) the shares of the Series A Preferred Stock remain outstanding or are converted into or exchanged for
 preference securities of the new surviving or resulting entity or entity controlling such entity, and (ii) the shares of the remaining Series A
 Preferred Stock or new preferred securities have such rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions
 thereof, that are not materially less favorable to the holders thereof than the rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers of the
 Series A Preferred Stock.

The foregoing voting provisions will not apply if, at or prior to the time when the act with respect to which such vote would otherwise be required shall be effected, all outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall have been redeemed.

Voting Rights under Delaware Law

Delaware law provides that the holders of preferred stock will have the right to vote separately as a class on any amendment to our charter that would increase or decrease the aggregate number of authorized shares of such class, increase or decrease the par value of the shares of such class, or alter or change the powers, preferences or special rights of such class, so as to affect them adversely. If any such proposed amendment would alter or change powers, preferences or special rights of one or more series of preferred stock so as to affect them adversely, but would not so affect the entire class of preferred stock, only the shares of the series so affected shall be considered a separate class for purposes of this vote on the amendment. This right is in addition to any voting rights that may be provided for in our charter.

Other Preferred Stock

Our charter authorizes our Board of Directors to create and provide for the issuance of one or more series of preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share, without the approval of our shareholders. Our Board of Directors can also determine the terms, including the designations, number, voting powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional and other special rights, and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions, of any preferred stock. Currently, 20,000,000 shares of our capital stock are classified as preferred stock under our charter. As of the date of this prospectus supplement, we have no preferred stock outstanding.

Depositary Agent, Transfer Agent and Registrar

Computershare, Inc. and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. will be the joint depositary and transfer agent and registrar for the Series A Preferred Stock. We may, in our sole discretion, remove the depositary in accordance with the agreement between us and the depositary; provided that we will appoint a successor depositary who will accept such appointment prior to the effectiveness of its removal.

Preemptive and Conversion Rights

The holders of the Series A Preferred Stock do not have any preemptive or conversion rights.

DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES

The following description summarizes specific terms and provisions of the depositary shares relating to the Series A Preferred Stock.

General

We are issuing depositary shares representing proportional fractional interests in shares of the Series A Preferred Stock. Each depositary share represents a 1/40th interest in a share of the Series A Preferred Stock, and will be evidenced by depositary receipts. We will deposit the underlying shares of the Series A Preferred Stock with a depositary pursuant to a deposit agreement between us and Computershare, Inc. and Computershare Trust Company, N.A., acting as joint depositary and the holders from time to time of the depositary receipts evidencing the depositary shares (the "Deposit Agreement"). Subject to the terms of the Deposit Agreement, each holder of a depositary share will be entitled, through the depositary, in proportion to the applicable fraction of a share of Series A Preferred Stock represented by such depositary share, to all the rights and preferences of the Series A Preferred Stock represented thereby (including dividend, voting, redemption and liquidation rights).

In this prospectus supplement, references to "holders" of depositary shares mean those who own depositary shares registered in their own names on the books that we or the depositary maintain for this purpose, and not indirect holders who own beneficial interests in depositary shares registered in street name or issued in book-entry form through DTC. Please review the special considerations that apply to indirect holders described in the section entitled "Book-Entry Procedures and Settlement" beginning on page S-32 of this prospectus supplement.

Immediately following the issuance of the Series A Preferred Stock, we will deposit the Series A Preferred Stock with the depositary, which will then issue the depositary shares to the underwriters for delivery to investors. Copies of the forms of Deposit Agreement and the depositary receipt may be obtained from us upon request and in the manner described in the section entitled "Where You Can Find More Information" in the accompanying prospectus.

Amendment and Termination of the Deposit Agreement

We and the depositary may generally amend the form of depositary receipt evidencing the depositary shares and any provision of the Deposit Agreement at any time without the consent of the holders of depositary shares. However, any amendment that materially and adversely alters the rights of the holders of depositary receipts evidencing the depositary shares will not be effective unless such amendment has been approved by holders of such receipts representing in the aggregate at least two-thirds of the depositary shares then outstanding.

The Deposit Agreement may be terminated by us or the depositary if: (i) all outstanding depositary shares have been redeemed; (ii) there has been made a final distribution in respect of the Series A Preferred Stock in connection with our liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, and such distribution has been distributed to the holders of depositary shares; or (iii) there has been consent of holders of depositary shares representing not less than two-thirds of the depositary shares outstanding.

Dividends and Other Distributions

Each dividend payable on a depositary share will be in an amount equal to 1/40th of the dividend payable on the related share of the Series A Preferred Stock.

The depositary will distribute any cash dividends or other cash distributions received in respect of the deposited Series A Preferred Stock to the record holders of depositary shares relating to the underlying Series A Preferred Stock in proportion to the number of depositary shares held by the holders. If we make a distribution other than in cash, the depositary will distribute any property received by it to the record holders of depositary

shares entitled to those distributions, unless it determines that the distribution cannot be made proportionally among those holders or that it is not feasible to make a distribution. In that event, the depositary may, with our approval, sell the property and distribute the net proceeds from the sale to the holders of the depositary shares.

Record dates for the payment of dividends and other matters relating to the depositary shares will be the same as the corresponding record dates for the Series A Preferred Stock.

The amounts distributed to holders of depositary shares will be reduced by any amounts required to be withheld by the depositary or by us on account of taxes or other governmental charges. The depositary may refuse to make any payment or distribution, or any transfer, exchange, or withdrawal of any depositary shares or the shares of the Series A Preferred Stock, until such taxes or other governmental charges are paid.

Redemption of Depositary Shares

If we redeem the Series A Preferred Stock represented by the depositary shares, the depositary shares will be redeemed from the proceeds received by the depositary resulting from the redemption of the Series A Preferred Stock held by the depositary. The redemption price per depositary share is expected to be equal to 1/40th of the redemption price per share payable with respect to the Series A Preferred Stock (or \$25 per depositary share), plus any declared and unpaid dividends and in the case of redemption following a regulatory capital treatment event, accrued and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) for the then-current dividend period, to but excluding the redemption date.

Whenever we redeem shares of Series A Preferred Stock held by the depositary, the depositary will redeem, as of the same redemption date, the number of depositary shares representing shares of Series A Preferred Stock so redeemed. If fewer than all of the outstanding depositary shares are redeemed, the depositary will select the depositary shares to be redeemed *pro rata* or by lot or in such other manner determined by us to be fair and equitable. For depositary shares held in book-entry form, see "Book-Entry Procedures and Settlement" beginning on page S-32 of this prospectus supplement. The depositary will send notice of redemption to record holders of the depositary receipts not less than 30 and not more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption of the Series A Preferred Stock and the related depositary shares.

Voting the Series A Preferred Stock

Because each depositary share represents a 1/40th interest in a share of the Series A Preferred Stock, holders of depositary receipts will be entitled to 1/40th of a vote per depositary share under those limited circumstances in which holders of the Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to a vote.

When the depositary receives notice of any meeting at which the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to vote, the depositary will send the information contained in the notice to the record holders of the depositary shares relating to the Series A Preferred Stock. Each record holder of the depositary shares on the record date, which will be the same date as the record date for the Series A Preferred Stock, may instruct the depositary to vote the amount of the Series A Preferred Stock represented by the holder's depositary shares. To the extent possible, the depositary will vote the maximum number of whole shares of the Series A Preferred Stock represented by depositary shares as to which any particular voting instructions are received and in accordance with the instructions it receives. We will agree to take all reasonable actions that the depositary determines are necessary to enable the depositary to vote as instructed. If the depositary does not receive specific instructions from the holders of any depositary shares representing the Series A Preferred Stock, it will not vote the amount of the Series A Preferred Stock represented by such depositary shares (but, at its discretion, may appear at any meeting with respect to the Series A Preferred Stock represented by such depositary shares, unless directed to the contrary by the holders of all of the depositary shares).

Depositary Agent, Transfer Agent and Registrar

Computershare, Inc. and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. will be the joint depositary and transfer agent and registrar for the depositary shares. We may, in our sole discretion, remove the depositary in accordance with the agreement between us and the depositary; provided that we will appoint a successor depositary who will accept such appointment prior to the effectiveness of its removal.

Form of Series A Preferred Stock and Depositary Shares

The depositary shares shall be issued in book-entry form through DTC, as described in "Book-Entry Procedures and Settlement" on page S-32 in this prospectus supplement. The Series A Preferred Stock will be issued in registered form to the depositary.

Listing of Depositary Shares

We will apply to list the depositary shares on the NYSE under the symbol "BOHPrA." However, there is no guarantee that we will be able to list the depositary shares. If approved, we expect trading of the depositary shares on the NYSE to begin within the 30-day period following the original issue date. Even if the depositary shares are listed, there may be little or no secondary market for the depositary shares.

BOOK-ENTRY PROCEDURES AND SETTLEMENT

We will issue the depositary shares under a book-entry system in the form of one or more global depositary receipts. We will register the global depositary receipts in the name of Cede & Co., as a nominee for The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The global depositary receipts will be deposited with the depositary.

Following the issuance of the depositary shares in book-entry only form, DTC will credit the accounts of its participants with the depositary shares upon our instructions. DTC will thus be the only registered holder of the depositary receipts representing the depositary shares and will be considered the sole owner of the depositary receipts for purposes of the Deposit Agreement.

Global depositary receipts may be transferred, in whole and not in part, only to another nominee of DTC or to a successor of DTC or its nominee. Beneficial interests in the global depositary receipts may be held through the Euroclear System, or Euroclear, and Clearstream Banking, S.A., or Clearstream, each as indirect participants in DTC. Transfers of beneficial interests in the global depositary receipts will be subject to the applicable rules and procedures of DTC and its direct and indirect participants, including, if applicable, those of Euroclear and Clearstream, which may change from time to time. DTC has advised us as follows: it is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Exchange Act. DTC holds securities that its participants deposit with it. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities through electronic computerized book entry transfers and pledges between participants' accounts, thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of securities certificates.

Direct participants in DTC's system include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. Access to DTC's system also is available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a direct participant, either directly or indirectly, which we collectively call indirect participants. Persons that are not participants may beneficially own securities held by or on behalf of DTC only through the participants or the indirect participants. The ownership interests in, and transfers of ownership interests in, each security held by or on behalf of DTC are recorded on the records of the participants and the indirect participants. The rules applicable to DTC and its participants are on file with the SEC.

DTC has also advised us that, upon the issuance of the depositary receipts evidencing the depositary shares, it will credit, on its book-entry registration and transfer system, the depositary shares evidenced thereby to the designated accounts of participants. Ownership of beneficial interests in the global depositary receipts will be limited to participants or persons that may hold interests through participants. Ownership of beneficial interests in the global depositary receipts will be shown on, and the transfer of those ownership interests may be effected only through, records maintained by DTC or its nominee (with respect to participants) and the records of participants and indirect participants (with respect to other owners of beneficial interests in the global depositary receipts).

Investors in the global depositary receipts that are participants may hold their interests therein directly through DTC. Investors in the global depositary receipts that are not participants may hold their interests therein indirectly through organizations (including Euroclear and Clearstream) that are participants in such system. Euroclear and Clearstream will hold interests in the global depositary receipts on behalf of their participants through customers' securities accounts in their respective names on the books of their respective depositaries. All interests in a global depositary receipt, including those held through Euroclear or Clearstream, may be subject to the procedures and requirements of DTC. Those interests held through Euroclear or Clearstream may also be subject to the procedures and requirements of such systems.

The laws of some states require that certain purchasers of securities take physical delivery of those securities in definitive form. These laws may impair the ability of holders to transfer beneficial interests in depositary receipts to certain purchasers. Because DTC can act only on behalf of the participants, which in turn act on behalf of the indirect participants, the ability of a person having beneficial interests in a global depositary receipt to pledge such interests to persons that do not participate in the DTC system, or otherwise take actions in respect of such interests, may be affected by the lack of a physical certificate evidencing such interests.

So long as DTC or any successor depositary for a depositary receipt, or any nominee, is the registered holder of such depositary receipt, DTC or such successor depositary or nominee will be considered the sole owner or holder of the depositary shares represented by such depositary receipts for all purposes under the Deposit Agreement. Except as set forth below, owners of beneficial interests in a depositary receipt will not be entitled to have depositary shares represented by such depositary receipt registered in their names, will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of depositary shares or depositary receipts in definitive form, and will not be considered the owners or holders thereof for any purpose under the Deposit Agreement. Accordingly, each person owning a beneficial interest in a depositary receipt must rely on the procedures of DTC and, if such person is not a participant, on the procedures of the participant through which such person owns its interest, to exercise any rights of a holder under the Deposit Agreement. We understand that, under existing industry practices, in the event that we request any action of holders or that an owner of a beneficial interest in the depositary receipts desires to give any consent or take any action under the Deposit Agreement, DTC or any successor depositary would authorize the participants holding the relevant beneficial interests to give or take such action or consent, and such participants would authorize beneficial owners owning through such participants to give or take such action or consent or would otherwise act upon the instructions of beneficial owners owning through them.

Payment of dividends, if any, distributions upon liquidation or other distributions with respect to the depositary shares that are registered in the name of or held by DTC or any successor depositary or nominee will be payable to DTC or such successor depositary or nominee, as the case may be, in its capacity as registered holder of the global depositary receipts representing the depositary shares. Under the terms of the Deposit Agreement, the depositary will treat the persons in whose names the depositary shares, including the depositary receipts, are registered as the owners of such securities for the purpose of receiving payments and for all other purposes. Consequently, neither we, nor any depositary, nor any agent of us or any such depositary will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to, or payments made on account of, beneficial ownership interests in the depositary receipts, for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests, or for any other matter relating to the actions and practices of DTC or any of its participants or indirect participants.

We have been advised by DTC that its current practice, upon receipt of any payment of dividends, distributions upon liquidation or other distributions with respect to the depositary receipts, is to credit participants' accounts with payments on the payment date, unless DTC has reason to believe it will not receive payments on such payment date. Each relevant participant is credited with an amount proportionate to its beneficial ownership of an interest in the relevant security as shown on the records of DTC. Payments by participants and indirect participants to owners of beneficial interests in the global depositary receipts held through such participants and indirect participants will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is now the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such participants or indirect participants, and will not be the responsibility of us, any depositary, nor any agent of us or of any such depositary. Neither we nor any such depositary or agent will be liable for any delay by DTC or by any participant or indirect participant in identifying the beneficial owners of the depositary shares, and we and any such depositary or agent may conclusively rely on and will be protected in relying on instructions from DTC or its nominee for all purposes.

We will send redemption notices to Cede & Co. as the registered holder of the depositary shares. If less than all of the depositary shares are redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each direct participant to be redeemed.

Crossmarket transfers between the participants in DTC, on the one hand, and Euroclear or Clearstream participants, on the other hand, will be effected through DTC in accordance with DTC's rules on behalf of Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, by its depositary; however, such crossmarket transactions will require delivery of instructions to Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, by the counterparty in such system in accordance with the rules and procedures and within the established deadlines (Brussels time) of such system. Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, will, if the transaction meets its settlement requirements, deliver instructions to its respective depositary to take action to effect final settlement on its behalf by delivering or receiving interests in the relevant global depositary receipts in DTC, and making or receiving payment in accordance with normal procedures for same-day funds settlement applicable to DTC. Euroclear participants and Clearstream participants may not deliver instructions directly to the depositories for Euroclear or Clearstream. DTC has advised us that it will take any action permitted to be taken by a holder of depositary shares only at the direction of one or more participants to whose account DTC has credited the interests in the global depositary receipts and only in respect of such portion of the aggregate amount of the depositary shares as to which such participants or participants has or have given such direction.

Owners of beneficial interests in a global depositary receipt will not be entitled to receive physical delivery of the related depositary shares or any depositary receipts in certificated form and will not be considered the holders of the depositary shares or depositary receipts for any purpose Deposit Agreement, and no depositary receipt will be exchangeable, except for another depositary receipt of the same denomination and tenor to be registered in the name of DTC or a successor depositary or nominee. Accordingly, each beneficial owner must rely on the procedures of DTC and, if the beneficial owner is not a participant, on the procedures of the participant or indirect participant through which the beneficial owner owns its interest to exercise any rights of a holder under Deposit Agreement.

Although DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream have agreed to the foregoing procedures to facilitate transfers of interests in the global securities among participants in DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, they are under no obligation to perform or to continue to perform such procedures, and may discontinue such procedures at any time. Neither we, nor any depositary, nor any agent of us or of any such depositary, nor any underwriter will have any responsibility for the performance by DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream or their respective participants or indirect participants of their respective obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations.

The information in this section, including any description of the operations and procedures of DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, has been provided solely as a matter of convenience. We do not take any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of this information, and this information is not intended to serve as a representation, warranty or contract modification of any kind. The operations and procedures of DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream are solely within the control of such settlement systems and are subject to changes by them. We urge investors to contact such systems or their participants directly to discuss these matters.

MATERIAL UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES

General

The following is a general summary of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences relevant to the purchase, ownership and disposition of the depositary shares. The following summary is based upon the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), U.S. Department of the Treasury (the "Treasury") regulations promulgated thereunder, judicial opinions, published positions of the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") and other applicable authorities, each as in effect as of the date hereof. These authorities are subject to change or differing interpretations, possibly with retroactive effect, and any such change or interpretation could affect the accuracy of the statements and conclusions set forth herein.

This summary is for general information only and does not address all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation that may be relevant to a particular investor in light of that investor's individual circumstances, nor does it address the effects of any state, local or non-U.S. tax laws, any tax treaty or any U.S. federal estate, gift, generation-skipping transfer or alternative minimum tax considerations. This summary is limited to taxpayers who will hold the depositary shares as "capital assets" within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Code, and it does not purport to be applicable to special classes of investors including, but not limited to, tax-exempt organizations, insurance companies, banks or other financial institutions, grantor trusts, partnerships or other entities classified as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes (and investors therein), subchapter S corporations, retirement plans, individual retirement accounts or other tax-deferred accounts, controlled foreign corporations, dealers in securities or currencies, regulated investment companies, real estate investment trusts, passive foreign investment companies for U.S. federal income tax purposes, U.S. holders (as defined below) whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar, U.S. expatriates, persons liable for the alternative minimum tax, traders in securities that elect to use a mark-to-market method of accounting for their securities holdings, and persons that will hold the depositary shares as a position in a hedging transaction, "straddle," "conversion," "wash sale," "constructive sale," "integrated transaction" for U.S. federal income tax purposes or other risk reduction transaction. This summary does not address the tax considerations that may be relevant to subsequent purchasers of the depositary shares and does not address any tax consequences arising under the unearned income Medicare contribution tax pursuant to the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 nor any considerations with respect to any withholding req

If a partnership (or other entity classified as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds the depositary shares, the tax treatment of a partner generally will depend upon the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. A partner and the partnership holding the depositary shares should consult their tax advisors regarding the tax considerations of acquiring, holding and disposing of the depositary shares.

We have not sought and will not seek any ruling from the IRS with respect to the statements made and the conclusions reached in this discussion, and there can be no assurance that the IRS will agree with such statements and conclusions.

The remainder of this discussion assumes that beneficial owners of the depositary shares will be treated as owners of the underlying Series A Preferred Stock for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

U.S. Holders

As used in this discussion, the term "U.S. holder" means a beneficial owner of the depositary shares that is, for U.S. federal income tax purposes:

· an individual citizen or resident of the United States;

- a corporation (or other entity treated as a corporation for U.S. federal tax purposes) created or organized in or under the laws of the United States or of any state thereof or the District of Columbia (and certain non-U.S. entities taxed as U.S. corporations under specialized sections of the Code);
- an estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source; or
- a trust if (1) a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over its administration and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust or (2) it has a valid election in effect under applicable Treasury regulations to be treated as a U.S. person for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Distributions. Distributions with respect to the depositary shares will be taxable as dividend income to the extent paid out of our current and accumulated earnings and profits as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes. To the extent that the amount of a distribution with respect to the depositary shares exceeds our current and accumulated earnings and profits, such distribution will be treated first as a tax-free return of capital to the extent of the U.S. holder's adjusted tax basis in such depositary shares, and thereafter as capital gain.

Distributions with respect to the depositary shares taxable as dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes paid to a corporate U.S. holder will generally qualify for a 50% dividends-received deduction. However, a corporate U.S. holder may not be entitled to take the 50% dividends-received deduction in all circumstances, and, even if it is so entitled, may be subject to special rules in respect of its ownership of the depositary shares. Corporate U.S. holders should consult their tax advisors regarding the holding period and other requirements that must be satisfied in order to qualify for the dividends-received deduction and with respect to the possible application of the extraordinary dividend provisions of the U.S. federal income tax law to their ownership or disposition of the depositary shares in their particular circumstances.

Distributions with respect to the depositary shares taxable as dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes paid to a noncorporate U.S. holder will generally represent "qualified dividend income." Qualified dividend income is taxable at preferential rates applicable to long-term capital gains, provided that certain holding period requirements are met and certain other conditions are satisfied.

A U.S. holder should consult its own tax advisors regarding the availability of the reduced dividend tax rate and the dividends-received deduction in light of its particular circumstances.

Sale, Exchange, or Certain Other Taxable Dispositions of the Depositary Shares. A U.S. holder will generally recognize capital gain or loss on a sale or exchange or other taxable disposition (other than certain redemptions described under "U.S. Holders—Redemptions of the Depositary Shares") of the depositary shares equal to the difference, if any, between the amount realized upon the sale or exchange and such U.S. holder's adjusted tax basis in the depositary shares sold or exchanged. Such capital gain or loss will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. holder's holding period for the depositary shares sold or exchanged is more than one year. Long-term capital gains of noncorporate taxpayers are generally taxed at preferential rates. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations.

Redemptions of the Depositary Shares. The tax treatment accorded to any redemption by us of our depositary shares from a U.S. holder can only be determined on the basis of the particular facts as to each U.S. holder of our depositary shares at the time of redemption.

In general, a U.S. holder of our depositary shares will recognize capital gain or loss measured by the difference between the amount received by the U.S. holder for such depositary shares upon the redemption and such U.S. holder's adjusted tax basis in the depositary shares redeemed if such redemption is considered to:

- result in a complete termination of the U.S. holder's stock interest in us;
- be substantially disproportionate with respect to the U.S. holder;

- be not essentially equivalent to a dividend with respect to the U.S. holder; or
- · be a redemption of stock held by a shareholder who is not a corporation and where such redemption results in a partial liquidation of us.

In applying these tests, there must be taken into account not only the depositary shares being redeemed, but also such U.S. holder's ownership of other classes and series of our capital stock and any options (including stock purchase rights) to acquire any of the foregoing. A U.S. holder of our depositary shares also must take into account any such securities (including options) which are considered to be owned by such U.S. holder by reason of the constructive ownership rules set forth in Section 318 of the Code.

If the redemption does not meet any of the tests described above, then the redemption proceeds received from our depositary shares will be treated as a distribution on our shares and will be taxable as described under the caption "U.S. Holders—Distributions" above. If a redemption of the depositary shares is treated as a distribution that is taxable as a dividend, U.S. holders are urged to consult their own tax advisors regarding the allocation of their tax basis in the redeemed and remaining depositary shares.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding. Information returns will generally be filed with the IRS in connection with the payment of dividends or other taxable distributions on the depositary shares to noncorporate U.S. holders and certain payments of proceeds to U.S. holders on the sale, exchange or redemption of the depositary shares. Additionally, such payments may be subject to backup withholding (currently at a rate of 24%) unless such U.S. holder (a) comes within certain exempt categories and, when required, demonstrates this fact in the manner required, or (b) within a reasonable period of time, provides a correct taxpayer identification number, certifies that it is not subject to backup withholding and otherwise complies with applicable requirements of the backup withholding rules.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amount withheld under the backup withholding rules from a payment to a U.S. holder is allowable as a credit against such holder's U.S. federal income tax, which may entitle the U.S. holder to a refund, provided that the U.S. holder provides the required information to the IRS in a timely manner.

Non-U.S. Holders

As used in this discussion, the term "non-U.S. holder" means a beneficial owner of the depositary shares other than a U.S. holder as defined above or an entity or arrangement that is treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Dividends. Distributions with respect to the depositary shares taxable as dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes paid to a non-U.S. holder generally will be subject to U.S. federal withholding tax at a 30% rate, or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty, unless such dividends are effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business of the non-U.S. holder within the United States (and, if required by an applicable tax treaty, are attributable to a U.S. permanent establishment). In order to claim the benefits of an applicable income tax treaty, a non-U.S. holder generally must furnish us or other payor with a properly executed IRS Form W-8BEN or W-8BEN-E (or other applicable IRS Form W-8) before the distribution date. Non-U.S. holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding their entitlement to benefits under an applicable income tax treaty and the requirements for claiming any such benefits.

Dividends paid to a non-U.S. holder that are effectively connected with such non-U.S. holder's conduct of a trade or business within the United States (and, if required by an applicable tax treaty, are attributable to a permanent establishment of the non-U.S. holder in the United States) generally are not subject to U.S. federal withholding tax, provided that the non-U.S. holder furnishes us or other payor with a properly executed IRS Form W-8ECI before the distribution date. Instead, such dividends generally will be subject to U.S. federal

income tax on a net income basis at the graduated U.S. federal income tax rates in the same manner as if such non-U.S. holder were a U.S. person. Any such effectively connected dividends received by a foreign corporation may, under certain circumstances, be subject to an additional branch profits tax at a 30% rate or such lower rate as specified by an applicable income tax treaty, subject to certain adjustments.

A non-U.S. holder eligible for a reduced rate of U.S. withholding tax pursuant to an applicable income tax treaty may obtain a refund of any excess amounts withheld by filing an appropriate claim for refund with the IRS.

Sale, Exchange, or Certain Other Taxable Dispositions of the Depositary Shares. Subject to the discussion below under "—Information Reporting and Backup Withholding," a non-U.S. holder generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax or withholding on gain realized on the sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of the depositary shares so long as:

- the gain is not effectively connected with the non-U.S. holder's conduct of a trade or business in the United States (and if required by an applicable tax treaty, the gain is not attributable to a permanent establishment maintained by such non-U.S. holder in the United States);
- in the case of a nonresident alien individual, such non-U.S. holder is not present in the United States for 183 or more days in the taxable year of the sale or disposition (and certain other conditions are met); and
- the depositary shares do not constitute U.S. real property interests in a "U.S. real property holding corporation" (a "USRPHC") for U.S. federal income tax purposes at any time within the shorter of the five-year period preceding the disposition or the period that the non-U.S. holder held the depositary shares. We do not believe that we currently are a USRPHC or that we will become one in the future.

Gain described in the first bullet point above will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net income basis at the regular graduated U.S. federal income tax rates in the same manner as if such non-U.S. holder were a U.S. person. A non-U.S. holder that is a corporation may, under certain circumstances be subject to an additional branch profits tax at a 30% rate or such lower rate as specified by an applicable income tax treaty of its "effectively connected earnings and profits" for the taxable year, subject to certain adjustments.

Gain described in the second bullet point above will be subject to a flat 30% tax on the gain derived from the disposition (or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty), which may be offset by U.S.-source capital losses, if any, for the taxable year, provided that the non-U.S. holder has timely filed U.S. federal income tax returns with respect to such losses.

As discussed above under "U.S. Holders—Redemptions of the Depositary Shares," an amount paid to a holder of depositary shares in connection with a redemption of the depositary shares may, under certain circumstances, be treated as a dividend. In that case, the payment would be subject to the rules for dividends described above under "Non-U.S. Holders—Dividends."

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding. Payment of dividends and the tax withheld with respect thereto are subject to information reporting requirements. These information reporting requirements apply regardless of whether withholding was reduced or eliminated by an applicable income tax treaty or withholding was not required because the dividends were effectively connected with a trade or business in the United States conducted by the non-U.S. holder. Copies of the information returns reporting such dividends and withholding may also be made available to the tax authorities in the country in which the non-U.S. holder resides.

U.S. backup withholding (currently at a rate of 24%) will generally apply on payment of dividends to a non-U.S. holder unless such non-U.S. holder furnishes to the payor a properly executed IRS Form W-8BEN or W-8BEN-E (or other applicable IRS Form W-8) or otherwise establishes an exemption.

Payment by a U.S. office of a broker of the proceeds of a sale of the depositary shares by a non-U.S. holder is subject to both backup withholding and information reporting unless the non-U.S. holder provides a properly executed IRS Form W-8BEN or W-8BEN-E (or other applicable IRS Form W-8) certifying its non-U.S. status or otherwise establishes an exemption. The payment of proceeds from the disposition of depositary shares by a non-U.S. holder effected at a non-U.S. office of a U.S. broker or a non-U.S. broker with certain specified U.S. connections generally will be subject to information reporting (but not backup withholding) unless the non-U.S. holder provides a properly executed IRS Form W-8BEN or W-8BEN-E (or other applicable IRS Form W-8) certifying the non-U.S. holder's non-U.S. status or by otherwise establishing an exemption. Backup withholding will apply if the sale is subject to information reporting and the broker has actual knowledge that the recipient is a U.S. person.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld from a payment to a non-U.S. holder under the backup withholding rules will be allowed as a credit against that holder's U.S. federal income tax liability and may entitle the holder to a refund, provided that the holder furnishes the required information to the IRS. Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors regarding the application of these rules to their particular circumstances.

You should consult your own tax advisor as to particular tax consequences to you of acquiring, holding, and disposing of the depositary shares, including the applicability and effect of other United States federal, state, local or foreign tax laws, and of any proposed changes in applicable law.

CERTAIN ERISA CONSIDERATIONS

The following is a summary of certain considerations associated with the purchase of the depositary shares by employee benefit plans to which Title I of the U.S. Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), applies; plans, individual retirement accounts and other arrangements to which Section 4975 of the Code applies and plans or arrangements to which the provisions of any federal, state, local, non-U.S. or other laws or regulations that are similar to such provisions of ERISA or the Code ("Similar Laws"), apply; and entities whose underlying assets are considered to include "plan assets" of such plans, accounts and arrangements (each of which is referred to hereunder as a "Plan").

Each fiduciary of a Plan should consider the fiduciary standards of ERISA or any applicable Similar Laws in the context of the Plan's particular circumstances before authorizing an investment in the depositary shares. Accordingly, among other factors, the fiduciary should consider whether the investment would satisfy the prudence and diversification requirements of ERISA or any applicable Similar Laws and would be consistent with the documents and instruments governing the Plan.

Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code prohibit Plans subject to such provisions ("ERISA Plans") from engaging in certain transactions involving "plan assets" with persons that are "parties in interest" under ERISA or "disqualified persons" under the Code with respect to the ERISA Plans. A violation of these "prohibited transaction" rules may result in an excise tax or other liabilities under ERISA and/or Section 4975 of the Code for those persons, unless exemptive relief is available under an applicable statutory or administrative exemption. Employee benefit plans that are governmental plans (as defined in Section 3(32) of ERISA), certain church plans (as defined in Section 3(33) of ERISA) and foreign plans (as described in Section 4(b)(4) of ERISA) are not subject to the requirements of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code, but may be subject to Similar Laws (such Plans referred to herein as "Similar Law Plans").

Prohibited transactions within the meaning of Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code could arise if the depositary shares were acquired by an ERISA Plan with respect to which we or any of our affiliates are a party in interest or a disqualified person. For example, if we are a party in interest or disqualified person with respect to an investing ERISA Plan (either directly or by reason of our ownership of our subsidiaries), a sale prohibited by Section 406(a)(1)(A) of ERISA or Section 4975(c)(1)(A) of the Code between the investing ERISA Plan and us may be deemed to occur, unless exemptive relief were available under an applicable exemption (see below).

Prohibited transaction class exemptions, or PTCEs, issued by the United States Department of Labor, as well as certain statutory exemptions available under ERISA and the Code, may provide exemptive relief for direct or indirect prohibited transactions resulting from the purchase, holding or disposition of the depositary shares. Those class and statutory exemptions include:

- PTCE 96-23—for certain transactions determined by in-house asset managers;
- PTCE 95-60—for certain transactions involving insurance company general accounts;
- PTCE 91-38—for certain transactions involving bank collective investment funds;
- PTCE 90-1—for certain transactions involving insurance company separate accounts;
- PTCE 84-14—for certain transactions determined by independent qualified professional asset managers; and
- ERISA § 408(b)(17); Code § 4975(d)(20)—statutory exemption for certain transactions with service providers.

Because of the possibility that direct or indirect prohibited transactions or violations of Similar Laws could occur as a result of the purchase, holding or disposition of the depositary shares by a Plan, the depositary shares

may not be purchased by any Plan, or any person investing the assets of any Plan, unless its purchase, holding and disposition of depositary shares will not constitute or result in a non-exempt prohibited transaction under ERISA or the Code or in a violation of any Similar Laws. Any purchaser or holder of the depositary shares or any interest in the depositary shares will be deemed to have represented in its fiduciary and its corporate capacity throughout the period that such purchaser or holder holds such depository shares that either:

- it is not a Plan and is not purchasing the depositary shares or interest in the depositary shares on behalf of or with the assets of any Plan; or
- its purchase, holding and disposition of the depositary shares or interest in the depositary shares will not constitute or result in a non-exempt prohibited transaction under ERISA or the Code or in a violation of any Similar Laws and neither we nor any of our affiliates is a "fiduciary" within the meaning of Section 3(21) of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code or, with respect to a Plan not subject to ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code, under any applicable Similar Law, with respect to the purchaser or holder in connection with such person's acquisition, holding or disposition of the depositary shares, or as a result of the exercise by us or any of our affiliates of any rights in connection with the depositary shares.

The foregoing discussion is general in nature and is not intended to be all-inclusive. Due to the complexity of these rules and the penalties imposed upon persons involved in non-exempt prohibited transactions, it is important that any person considering the purchase of depositary shares on behalf of or with the assets of any Plan consult with its counsel regarding the consequences under ERISA, the Code and any applicable Similar Laws of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of the depositary shares, whether any exemption would be applicable, and whether all conditions of such exemption have been satisfied such that the acquisition, holding and disposition of the depositary shares by the Plan are entitled to full exemptive relief thereunder.

Nothing herein shall be construed as, and the sale of the depositary shares to a Plan is in no respect, a representation by us or the underwriters that any investment in the depositary shares would meet any or all of the relevant legal requirements with respect to investment by, or is appropriate for, Plans generally or any particular Plan. Each purchaser or holder of a depositary share will have exclusive responsibility for ensuring that its purchase, holding and subsequent disposition of the depositary share does not violate ERISA, the Code or any Similar Laws.

UNDERWRITING

BofA Securities, Inc., Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC, Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc. and UBS Securities LLC are acting as representatives of each of the underwriters named below. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in an underwriting agreement among us and the underwriters, we have agreed to sell to the underwriters, and each of the underwriters has agreed, severally and not jointly, to purchase from us, the number of depositary shares set forth opposite its name below.

Underwriter	Number of Depositary Shares
BofA Securities, Inc.	2,160,000
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC	1,440,000
Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc.	1,440,000
UBS Securities LLC	2,160,000
Total	7,200,000

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the underwriting agreement, the underwriters have agreed, severally and not jointly, to purchase all of the depositary shares sold under the underwriting agreement if any of these depositary shares are purchased. If an underwriter defaults, the underwriting agreement provides that the purchase commitments of the nondefaulting underwriters may be increased or the underwriting agreement may be terminated.

We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act or to contribute to payments the underwriters may be required to make in respect of those liabilities.

The underwriters are offering the depositary shares, subject to prior sale, when, as and if issued to and accepted by them, subject to approval of legal matters by their counsel, including the validity of the depositary shares, and satisfaction of other conditions contained in the underwriting agreement, such as the receipt by the underwriters of officer's certificates and legal opinions. The underwriters reserve the right to withdraw, cancel or modify offers to the public and to reject orders in whole or in part.

Commissions and Discounts

The representatives have advised us that the underwriters propose initially to offer the depositary shares directly to the public at the public offering price that appears on the cover page of this prospectus supplement and to certain dealers at that price less a selling concession not in excess of \$0.30 per depositary share sold to institutional investors and \$0.50 per depositary share sold to retail investors. Any underwriter may allow, and such dealers may reallow, a selling concession not in excess of \$0.20 per depositary share sold to institutional investors and \$0.25 per depositary share sold to retail investors, to certain other brokers or dealers. After the initial offering of the depositary shares to the public, the underwriters may vary the offering price and other selling terms of the depositary shares from time to time. The offering of the depositary shares by the underwriters is subject to receipt and acceptance and subject to the underwriters' right to reject any order in whole or in part. Sales of depositary shares made outside of the United States may be made by affiliates of the underwriters.

The following table shows the public offering price, underwriting discount and proceeds, before expenses, to us.

	Pu	blic Offering Price	Underwriting Discount (1)	_	Proceeds to Issuer (Before Expenses)
Per depositary share	\$	25.00	\$ 0.5197	\$	24.4803
Total	\$	180,000,000.00	\$ 3,741,680.00	\$	176,258,320.00

⁽¹⁾ The underwriting discount is calculated using a weighted average amount of \$0.7875 per depositary share for retail orders (492,800 depositary shares) and \$0.5000 per depositary share for institutional orders (6,707,200 depositary shares).

The expenses of this offering, not including the underwriting discount, are estimated at \$795,000 and are payable by us.

No Sales of Similar Securities

We have agreed that, for a period of 30 days after the date of this prospectus supplement and subject to certain exceptions, we will not, directly or indirectly, without the prior written consent of representatives, (i) offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant for the sale of, or lend or otherwise transfer or dispose of any depositary shares or any securities that are substantially similar to the preferred stock, whether owned as of the date hereof or hereafter acquired or with respect to which we have acquired or hereafter acquire the power of disposition, or file, or cause to be filed, any registration statement under the Securities Act with respect to any of the foregoing (collectively, the "Lock-Up Securities") or (ii) enter into any swap or any other agreement or any transaction that transfers, in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, the economic consequence of ownership of the Lock-Up Securities, whether any such swap, agreement or transaction is to be settled by delivery of Lock-Up Securities, in cash or otherwise.

NYSE Listing

The depositary shares are a new issue of securities with no established trading. We have applied to list the depositary shares on the NYSE under the symbol "BOHPrA". If the application is approved, trading of the depositary shares on the NYSE is expected to begin within 30 days after the date of initial delivery of the depositary shares. The underwriters have advised us that they intend to make a market in the depositary shares. They will have no obligation to make a market in the depositary shares, however, and may cease market-making activities, if commenced, at any time. However, an active trading market on the NYSE for the depositary shares may not develop or, even if one develops, may not last, in which case the liquidity and market price of the depositary shares could be adversely affected, the difference between bid and asked prices could be substantial and your ability to transfer depositary shares at the time and price desired will be limited.

Price Stabilization, Short Positions

Until the distribution of the depositary shares is completed, SEC rules may limit underwriters and selling group members from bidding for and purchasing depositary shares. However, the representatives may engage in transactions that have the effect of stabilizing the price of the depositary shares, such as purchases and other activities that peg, fix or maintain that price.

In connection with this offering, the underwriters may bid for or purchase and sell depositary shares in the open market. These transactions may include short sales and purchases on the open market to cover positions created by short sales. Short sales involve the sale by the underwriters of a greater number of depositary shares than they are required to purchase in this offering. The underwriters may close out any covered short position by purchasing depositary shares in the open market. A short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that there may be downward pressure on the price of depositary shares in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase in this offering.

Similar to other purchase transactions, the underwriters' purchases to cover the syndicate short sales and other activities may have the effect of raising or maintaining the market price of depositary shares or preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of depositary shares. As a result, the price of depositary shares may be higher than the price that might otherwise exist in the open market. The underwriters may conduct these transactions on the NYSE, in the over-the-counter market or otherwise.

Neither we nor any of the underwriters make any representation or prediction as to the direction or magnitude of any effect that the transactions described above may have on the price of depositary shares. In addition, neither we nor any of the underwriters make any representation that the representatives will engage in these transactions or that these transactions, once commenced, will not be discontinued without notice.

Extended Settlement

We expect that delivery of the preferred stock will be made to investors on June 15, 2021, which will be the fifth business day following the date of this prospectus supplement (such settlement being referred to as "T+5"). Under Rule 15c6-1 under the Exchange Act, trades in the secondary market are required to settle in two business days, unless the parties to any such trade expressly agree otherwise. Accordingly, purchasers who wish to trade their depositary shares prior to the second business day preceding the date of delivery of the preferred stock referenced above will be required, by virtue of the fact that the preferred stock initially will settle in T+5, to specify an alternate settlement arrangement at the time of any such trade to prevent a failed settlement. Purchasers who wish to trade their depositary shares prior to the second business day preceding the date of delivery of the preferred stock referenced above should consult their advisors.

Electronic Distribution

In connection with this offering, certain of the underwriters or securities dealers may distribute prospectuses by electronic means, such as e-mail.

Other Relationships

Some of the underwriters and their affiliates have engaged in, and may in the future engage in, investment banking and other commercial dealings in the ordinary course of business with us or our affiliates. They have received, or may in the future receive, customary fees and commissions for these transactions.

In addition, in the ordinary course of their business activities, the underwriters and their affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own account and for the accounts of their customers. Such investments and securities activities may involve securities and/or instruments of ours or our affiliates. Certain of the underwriters or their affiliates that have a lending relationship with us routinely hedge their credit exposure to us consistent with their customary risk management policies. Typically, such underwriters and their affiliates would hedge such exposure by entering into transactions which consist of either the purchase of credit default swaps or the creation of short positions in our securities, including potentially the depositary shares offered hereby. Any such short positions could adversely affect future trading prices of the depositary shares offered hereby. The underwriters and their affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of such securities or financial instruments and may hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire, long and/or short positions in such securities and instruments.

Selling Restrictions

Canada

The depositary shares may be sold only to purchasers purchasing, or deemed to be purchasing, as principal that are accredited investors, as defined in National Instrument 45-106 Prospectus Exemptions or subsection

73.3(1) of the Securities Act (Ontario), and are permitted clients, as defined in National Instrument 31-103 Registration Requirements, Exemptions and Ongoing Registrant Obligations. Any resale of the depositary shares must be made in accordance with an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the prospectus requirements of applicable securities laws.

Securities legislation in certain provinces or territories of Canada may provide a purchaser with remedies for rescission or damages if this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus (including any amendment thereto) contains a misrepresentation, provided that the remedies for rescission or damages are exercised by the purchaser within the time limit prescribed by the securities legislation of the purchaser's province or territory. The purchaser should refer to any applicable provisions of the securities legislation of the purchaser's province or territory for particulars of these rights or consult with a legal advisor.

Pursuant to section 3A.3 of National Instrument 33-105 Underwriting Conflicts ("NI 33-105"), the underwriters are not required to comply with the disclosure requirements of NI 33-105 regarding underwriter conflicts of interest in connection with this offering.

Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail Investors

The depositary shares are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the EEA. For the purposes of this provision:

- (a) the expression "retail investor" means a person who is one (or more) of the following:
 - (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or
 - (ii) a customer within the meaning of the Insurance Distribution Directive, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or
 - (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Regulation; and
- (b) the expression "offer" includes the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the depositary shares to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for the depositary shares.

Prohibition of Sales to UK Retail Investors

The depositary shares may not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the United Kingdom. For the purposes of this provision:

- (a) the expression "retail investor" means a person who is one (or more) of the following:
 - (i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part of domestic law of the United Kingdom by virtue of the EUWA; or
 - (ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the FSMA and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA to implement the Insurance Distribution Directive, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law of the United Kingdom by virtue of the EUWA; or
 - (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of the UK Prospectus Regulation; and
- (b) the expression "offer" includes the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the depositary shares to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for the depositary shares.

Other regulatory restrictions in the United Kingdom

Any invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of Section 21 of the FSMA) in connection with the issue or sale of the depositary shares may only be communicated or caused to be communicated in circumstances in which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to us.

All applicable provisions of the FSMA must be complied with in respect to anything done by any person in relation to the depositary shares in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

Hong Kong

The depositary shares may not be offered or sold in Hong Kong, by means of any document, other than (a) to "professional investors" as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made under that Ordinance or (b) in other circumstances which do not result in the document being a "prospectus" as defined in the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong) or which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of that Ordinance. No advertisement, invitation or document relating to the depositary shares may be issued or may be in the possession of any person for the purpose of the issue (in each case, whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere), which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to be read by, the public in Hong Kong (except if permitted to do so under the securities laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to the depositary shares which are or are intended to be disposed of only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to "professional investors" as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made under that Ordinance.

Japan

No securities registration statement has been and will be filed under Article 4, Paragraph 1 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan (Law No. 25 of 1948, as amended) ("FIEL") in relation to the depositary shares. The depositary shares are being offered or sold in a private placement to "qualified institutional investors" (*tekikaku-kikan-toshika*) under Article 10 of the Cabinet Office Ordinance concerning Definitions provided in Article 2 of the FIEL (the Ministry of Finance Ordinance No. 14, as amended) ("QIIs"), under Article 2, Paragraph 3, Item 2 i of the FIEL. Any QII acquiring the depositary shares in this offer may not transfer or resell those depositary shares except to other QIIs. Accordingly, the depositary shares are not being offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to or for the account or benefit of any resident of Japan (which term as used herein means any person or entity resident in Japan, including any corporation or other entity organized under the laws of Japan) or to others for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to or for the account or benefit of any resident of Japan except for the private placement above pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the FIEL and in compliance with any other applicable laws, regulations and ministerial guidelines of Japan in effect at the relevant time.

Korea

The depositary shares may not be offered, sold and delivered directly or indirectly, or offered or sold to any person for reoffering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Korea or to any resident of Korea except pursuant to the applicable laws and regulations of Korea, including the Financial Investment Services and Capital Markets Act and the Foreign Exchange Transaction Law and the decrees and regulations thereunder. The depositary shares have not been registered with the Financial Services Commission of Korea for public offering in Korea. Furthermore, the depositary shares may not be resold to Korean residents unless the purchaser of the depositary shares complies with all applicable regulatory requirements (including but not limited to government approval requirements under the Foreign Exchange Transaction Law and its subordinate decrees and regulations) in connection with the purchase of the depositary shares.

Singapore

This prospectus supplement has not been and will not be registered as a prospectus under the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the "SFA") with the Monetary Authority of Singapore, and the offer of the depositary shares in Singapore is made primarily pursuant to the exemptions under Sections 274 and 275 of the SFA. Accordingly, this prospectus supplement and any other document or material in connection with the

offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of the depositary shares may not be circulated or distributed, nor may the depositary shares be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to any person in Singapore other than (i) to an institutional investor (as defined in Section 4A of the SFA) (an "Institutional Investor") pursuant to Section 274 of the SFA, (ii) to an accredited investor (as defined in Section 4A of the SFA) (an "Accredited Investor") or other relevant person (as defined in Section 275(2) of the SFA) (a "Relevant Person") and pursuant to Section 275(1) of the SFA, or to any person pursuant to an offer referred to in Section 275(1A) of the SFA, and in accordance with the conditions, specified in Section 275 of the SFA and (where applicable) Regulation 3 of the Securities and Futures (Classes of Investors) Regulations 2018 or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with, the conditions of any other applicable exemption or provision of the SFA.

It is a condition of the offer that where the depositary shares are subscribed for or acquired pursuant to an offer made in reliance on Section 275 of the SFA by a Relevant Person which is:

- (a) a corporation (which is not an Accredited Investor), the sole business of which is to hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or more individuals, each of whom is an Accredited Investor; or
- (b) a trust (where the trustee is not an Accredited Investor), the sole purpose of which is to hold investments and each beneficiary of the trust is an individual who is an Accredited Investor,

the securities and securities-based derivatives contracts (each term as defined in Section 2(1) of the SFA) of that corporation and the beneficiaries' rights and interest (howsoever described) in that trust shall not be transferred within six months after that corporation or that trust has subscribed for or acquired the depositary shares except:

- (i) to an Institutional Investor, or an Accredited Investor or other Relevant Person, or which arises from an offer referred to in Section 275(1A) of the SFA (in the case of that corporation) or Section 276(4)(i)(B) of the SFA (in the case of that trust);
- (ii) where no consideration is or will be given for the transfer; or
- (iii) where the transfer is by operation of law.

By accepting this prospectus supplement, the recipient hereof represents and warrants that he is entitled to receive it in accordance with the restrictions set forth above and agrees to be bound by limitations contained herein. Any failure to comply with these limitations may constitute a violation of law.

Singapore Securities and Futures Act Product Classification—Solely for the purposes of its obligations pursuant to Sections 309B(1)(a) and 309B(1)(c) of the SFA, the issuer has determined, and hereby notifies all relevant persons (as defined in Section 309A of the SFA) that the depositary shares are "prescribed capital markets products" (as defined in the Securities and Futures (Capital Markets Products) Regulations 2018) and "Excluded Investment Products" (as defined in MAS Notice SFA 04-N12: Notice on the Sale of Investment Products and MAS Notice FAA-N16: Notice on Recommendations on Investment Products).

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the Series A Preferred Stock and the depositary shares offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz, New York, New York, New York, New York, New York, will act as counsel to the underwriters.

EXPERTS

Our consolidated financial statements appearing in our Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, as set forth in their reports thereon, included therein, and incorporated herein by reference. Such financial statements are, and audited financial statements to be included in subsequently filed documents will be, incorporated herein in reliance upon the reports of Ernst & Young LLP pertaining to such financial statements (to the extent covered by consents filed with the SEC) given on the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" information in this prospectus, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring to those documents we file with the SEC. Any information incorporated this way is considered to be part of this prospectus supplement, and any information that we file later with the SEC prior to the termination of this offering will automatically update and, in some cases, supersede the information herein. We hereby "incorporate by reference" the documents listed below (other than, in each case, documents or information deemed to be furnished and not filed in accordance with SEC rules).

- Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 (including information specifically incorporated by reference into the Annual Report on Form 10-K from our <u>definitive proxy statement</u> filed on March 19, 2021);
- Our Quarterly Report on <u>Form 10-Q</u> for the quarter ended March 31, 2021; and
- Our Current Reports on Form 8-K filed on <u>January 25, 2021</u> (Item 2.05 only), <u>February 22, 2021</u>, <u>March 31, 2021</u>, and <u>May 4, 2021</u>

We also incorporate by reference in this prospectus supplement any future filings that we make with the SEC under Section 13(a), 13(c), 14, or 15(d) of the Exchange Act prior to the termination of this offering; *provided*, *however*, that we are not incorporating any information furnished under either Item 2.02 or Item 7.01 or any related exhibit furnished under Item 9.01(d) of any Current Report on Form 8-K unless, and except to the extent, specified in any such Current Report on Form 8-K.

Upon your oral or written request, we will provide you with a copy of any of these filings at no cost. Requests should be directed to:

Janelle Higa Manager of Investor Relations Bank of Hawaii Corporation 130 Merchant Street Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 (808) 694-8007

We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-3. This prospectus supplement, which constitutes a part of the registration statement, does not contain all of the information set forth in the registration statement or the exhibits that are part of the registration statement. For further information with respect to us and the depositary shares, reference is made to the registration statement, including the prospectus contained therein, and exhibits thereto. Our SEC filings are available to the public from the SEC's website at https://www.sec.gov.

We are subject to the information and periodic reporting requirements of the Exchange Act and file periodic reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. These periodic reports, proxy statements and other information are available at the SEC website referred to above.

PROSPECTUS

Ah Bank of Hawaii Bank of Hawaii Corporation

Common Stock
Preferred Stock
Depositary Shares
Warrants
Purchase Contracts for Securities
Units

The securities listed above may be offered and sold, from time to time, by Bank of Hawaii Corporation, a Delaware corporation (which may be referred to as "we" or "us" or "our" or the "Issuer"), and/or one or more selling security holders to be identified in the future in amounts, at prices, and on other terms to be determined at the time of the offering. The Issuer will describe the specific terms and manner of offering of these securities in a supplement to this prospectus. The prospectus supplement may also add, update, or change information contained in this prospectus. You should read this prospectus and the related prospectus supplement carefully before you invest in the securities described in the applicable prospectus supplement. This prospectus may not be used to consummate sales of securities unless accompanied by a prospectus supplement.

We may offer and sell these securities to or through one or more underwriters, dealers and agents or directly to purchasers on a continued or delayed basis.

Our common stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") under the symbol "BOH." Our principal executive offices are located at 130 Merchant Street, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813, and our telephone number is (888) 643-3888.

Investing in the offered securities involves risks. See "<u>Risk Factors</u>" on page 1 of this prospectus and in other documents that we subsequently file with the Securities and Exchange Commission which are incorporated by reference into this prospectus. Additional risk factors may also be set forth in any applicable prospectus supplement.

These securities will be equity securities of the Issuer and will not be savings accounts, deposits, or other obligations of any of our bank or nonbank subsidiaries and will not be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the deposit insurance fund or any other governmental agency or instrumentality.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is June 3, 2021.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Pag</u>
RISK FACTORS	
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	1
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	
INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE	
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	4
BANK OF HAWAII CORPORATION	2
SECURITIES WE MAY OFFER	
USE OF PROCEEDS	(
<u>PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION</u>	(
LEGAL MATTERS	
<u>EXPERTS</u>	

RISK FACTORS

Prior to making any investment decision with respect to the securities that we may offer, prospective investors should carefully consider the specific factors set forth under the caption "Risk Factors" in the applicable prospectus supplement and in our periodic reports filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") that are incorporated by reference herein, together with all of the other information appearing in this prospectus or in the applicable prospectus supplement or incorporated by reference into this prospectus in light of their particular investment objectives and financial circumstances.

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the SEC using a "shelf" registration or continuous offering process. Under this shelf process, we or one or more selling security holders to be identified in the future may from time to time sell any combination of the securities described in this prospectus in one or more offerings.

The following securities may be offered from time to time:

- common stock;
- preferred stock;
- · depositary shares;
- warrants:
- purchase contracts for securities; or
- units.

This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities that we or any selling security holder may offer as well as other information you should know before investing in our securities. Each time that we or any selling security holder offer securities, we will file with the SEC a prospectus supplement containing specific information about the terms of the securities being offered. The prospectus supplement may include a discussion of any risk factors or other special considerations that apply to those securities. The prospectus supplement may also add, update, or change the information in this prospectus. If there is any inconsistency between the information in this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement, you should rely on the information in that prospectus supplement. You should read both this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement together with additional information described under the headings "Where You Can Find More Information" and "Information Incorporated by Reference."

The registration statement containing this prospectus, including exhibits to the registration statement, provides additional information about us and the securities offered under this prospectus. The registration statement can be read at the SEC website or at the SEC offices mentioned under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information."

We have not, and the underwriters and their affiliates and agents have not, authorized any person to provide any information or represent anything about us other than what is contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or the applicable prospectus supplement prepared by or on behalf of us or to which we have referred you. We do not, and the underwriters and their affiliates and agents do not, take any responsibility for, and can provide no assurance as to the reliability of, information that others may provide you. The Issuer may only use this prospectus to sell securities if it is accompanied by a prospectus supplement which includes the specific terms of that offering. The Issuer is only offering these securities in jurisdictions where the offer is permitted. You should not assume that the information in this prospectus or the applicable prospectus supplement is accurate as of any date other than the dates on the front of those documents.

The Issuer may sell securities to underwriters who will sell the securities to the public on terms fixed at the time of sale. In addition, the securities may be sold by the Issuer directly or through dealers or agents designated from time to time. If the Issuer, directly or through agents, solicits offers to purchase the securities, the Issuer reserves the sole right to accept and, together with its agents, to reject, in whole or in part, any of those offers.

The prospectus supplement will contain the names of the underwriters, dealers, or agents, if any, together with the terms of offering, the compensation of those underwriters, dealers, or agents, and the net proceeds to us. Any underwriters, dealers, or agents participating in the offering may be deemed "underwriters" within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act").

One or more of our subsidiaries, including Bankoh Investment Services, Inc., may buy and sell any of the securities after the securities are issued as part of their business as a broker-dealer. Those subsidiaries may use this prospectus and the related prospectus supplement in those transactions. Any sale by a subsidiary will be made at the prevailing market price at the time of sale.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly, and current reports, proxy statements, and other information with the SEC. Our SEC filings are available to the public over the internet at the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov and on the investor relations page of our website at http://ir.boh.com. Except for those SEC filings incorporated by reference in this prospectus, none of the other information on, or accessible from, our website is part of this prospectus.

INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference into this prospectus the information that we file with it, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those publicly available documents. The information that we incorporate by reference is an important part of this prospectus. Some information contained in this prospectus updates the information incorporated by reference, and information that we file in the future with the SEC will automatically modify, supersede or update this prospectus. In other words, in the case of a conflict or inconsistency between information in this prospectus and/or information incorporated by reference into this prospectus, you should rely on the information contained in the document that was filed later.

This prospectus incorporates by reference the documents listed below and any filings we make with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14, or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Securities Exchange Act") (other than those "furnished" pursuant to Item 2.02 or Item 7.01 in any Current Report on Form 8-K or other information deemed to have been "furnished" rather than filed in accordance with the SEC's rules) after the initial filing of the registration statement related to this prospectus until the termination of the offering of the securities covered by the applicable prospectus supplement:

- Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 (including information specifically incorporated by reference into the Annual Report on Form 10-K from our <u>definitive proxy statement</u> filed on March 19, 2021);
- Quarterly Report on <u>Form 10-Q</u> for the quarter ended March 31, 2021;
- Current Reports on Form 8-K filed on <u>January 25, 2021</u> (Item 2.05 only), <u>February 22, 2021</u>, <u>March 31, 2021</u>, and <u>May 4, 2021</u>; and
- The description of our common stock contained in the Form 8-A filed under our former name, Bancorp Hawaii, Inc., on March 20, 1991, including any amendment or any report or other filing with the SEC filed subsequent thereto and updating that description.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, we are not incorporating any document or information deemed to have been furnished and not filed in accordance with SEC rules.

Upon written or oral request, we will provide — at no cost to the requester — a copy of any or all of the information that has been incorporated by reference in this prospectus but not delivered with this prospectus. You may make a request by writing to the following address or calling the following telephone number:

Janelle Higa Manager of Investor Relations Bank of Hawaii Corporation 130 Merchant Street Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 Phone: (808) 694-8007

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement contain or incorporate by reference forward-looking statements, including, but not limited to, certain plans, expectations, goals, projections, and statements, which are not historical facts and are subject to numerous assumptions, risks, and uncertainties. Statements that do not describe historical or current facts, including statements about beliefs and expectations, are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements may be identified by words such as expect, anticipate, believe, intend, estimate, plan, target, goal, or similar expressions, or future or conditional verbs such as will, may, might, should, would, could, or similar variations. The forward-looking statements are intended to be subject to the safe harbor provided by Section 27A of the Securities Act, Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act, and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

By their nature, forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks, and uncertainties. A number of factors could cause actual conditions, events, or results to differ significantly from those described in the forward-looking statements. These factors include, but are not limited to, those which may be set forth in the accompanying prospectus supplement and those under the heading "Risk Factors" included in our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and other factors described in our periodic reports filed from time to time with the SEC. Actual results, performance or achievement could differ materially from those contained in these forward-looking statements for a variety of reasons, including, without limitation, those discussed under "Risk Factors" in the applicable prospectus supplement and in other information contained in our publicly available filings with the SEC. Other unknown or unpredictable factors also could have a material adverse effect on us and our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We encourage you to understand forward-looking statements to be strategic objectives rather than absolute forecasts of future performance. All forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made and are based on information available at that time. We do not assume any obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect circumstances or events that occur after the date the forward-looking statements were made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events except as required by federal securities laws. As forward-looking statements involve significant risks and uncertainties, caution should be exercised against placing undue reliance on such statements. Please carefully review and consider the various disclosures made in the applicable prospectus supplement and in our other reports filed with the SEC that attempt to advise interested parties of the risks and factors that may affect our business, results of operations, financial condition or prospects.

BANK OF HAWAII CORPORATION

We are a Delaware corporation and a bank holding company headquartered in Honolulu, Hawaii. Our principal operating subsidiary, Bank of Hawaii (the "Bank"), was organized on December 17, 1897, and is chartered by the State of Hawaii. The Bank's deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and the Bank is a member of the Federal Reserve System.

The Bank, directly and through its subsidiaries, provides a broad range of financial products and services primarily to customers in Hawaii, Guam, and other Pacific Islands. The Bank's subsidiaries include, among others, Bank of Hawaii Leasing, Inc., Bankoh Investment Services, Inc., and Pacific Century Life Insurance Corporation. The Bank's subsidiaries are engaged in equipment leasing, securities brokerage, investment advisory services, and providing credit insurance.

We are organized into three business segments for management reporting purposes: Consumer Banking, Commercial Banking, and Treasury and Other.

As of March 31, 2021, we had, on a consolidated basis, total assets of approximately \$21.9 billion, total deposits of approximately \$19.6 billion and total shareholders' equity of approximately \$1.4 billion.

Our principal executive offices are located at 130 Merchant Street, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813, and our telephone number is (888) 643-3888.

SECURITIES WE MAY OFFER

We may use this prospectus to offer securities in one or more offerings. A prospectus supplement, which we will provide each time we offer securities, will describe the amounts, prices and detailed terms of the securities and may describe risks associated with an investment in the securities. We will also include in the prospectus supplement, where applicable, information about material United States federal income tax considerations relating to the securities. Terms used in this prospectus will have the meanings described in this prospectus unless otherwise specified. The securities of each class as described in this prospectus may also be offered and sold, from time to time, by one or more selling security holders to be identified in the future.

We may sell the securities to or through underwriters, dealers or agents or directly to purchasers. We, as well as any agents acting on our behalf, reserve the sole right to accept or to reject in whole or in part any proposed purchase of our securities. Each prospectus supplement will set forth the names of any underwriters, dealers or agents involved in the sale of our securities described in that prospectus supplement and any applicable fee, commission or discount arrangements with them.

This prospectus may not be used to sell securities unless accompanied by the applicable prospectus supplement.

Common Stock

We may sell shares of our common stock, par value \$0.01 per share. In a prospectus supplement, we will describe the aggregate number of shares offered and the offering price or prices of the shares.

Preferred Stock and Depositary Shares

We may sell shares of our preferred stock in one or more series. We may, at our option, elect to offer fractional shares of preferred stock, rather than full shares of preferred stock. In such event, we will issue receipts for depositary shares, each of which will represent a fraction of a particular series of preferred stock. In a prospectus supplement, we will describe the specific designation, the aggregate number of shares of preferred stock offered, the dividend rate or manner of calculating the dividend rate, the dividend periods or manner of calculating the dividend periods, the ranking of the shares of the series with respect to dividends, liquidation and dissolution, the stated value of the shares of the series, the voting rights of the shares of the series, if any, whether and on what terms the shares of the series will be convertible or exchangeable, whether and on what terms we can redeem the shares of the series, whether we will offer depositary shares representing shares of the series and if so, the fraction or multiple of a share of preferred stock represented by each depositary share, whether we will list the preferred stock or depositary shares on a securities exchange and any other specific terms of the series of preferred stock.

Warrants

We may sell warrants to purchase shares of our preferred stock, shares of our common stock or units. In a prospectus supplement, we will inform you of the exercise price and other specific terms of the warrants, including whether our or your obligations, if any, under any warrants may be satisfied by delivering or purchasing the underlying securities or their cash value.

Purchase Contracts

We may issue purchase contracts, including purchase contracts issued as part of a unit with one or more other securities, for the purchase or sale of our preferred stock, depositary shares or common stock.

Units

We may sell any combination of one or more of the other securities described in this prospectus, together as units. In a prospectus supplement, we will describe the particular combination of securities constituting any units and any other specific terms of the units.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Unless the applicable prospectus supplement states otherwise, we anticipate that the net proceeds from the sale of the securities by the Issuer will be added to our general funds and will be available for general corporate purposes, including, among other things:

- · the repayment of existing indebtedness,
- the repurchase of our common stock,
- investments in, or extensions of credit to, our existing or future subsidiaries, and
- the financing of possible acquisitions.

Pending such use, we may temporarily invest the net proceeds in short-term securities or reduce our short-term indebtedness, or we may hold the net proceeds in deposit accounts in our subsidiary bank.

Based upon our historical and anticipated future growth and our financial needs, we may engage in additional financings of a character and amount that we determine as the need arises.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We may sell the offered securities:

- through agents;
- · to or through underwriters; or
- directly to other purchasers.

Any underwriters or agents will be identified and their discounts, commissions and other items constituting underwriters' compensation and any securities exchanges on which the securities are listed will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement or term sheet.

We (directly or through agents) may sell, and the underwriters may resell, the offered securities in one or more transactions, including negotiated transactions, at a fixed public offering price or prices, which may be changed, or at market prices prevailing at the time of sale, at prices related to prevailing market prices or at negotiated prices.

In connection with the sale of offered securities, the underwriters or agents may receive compensation from us or from purchasers of the offered securities for whom they may act as agents. The underwriters may sell offered securities to or through dealers, who may also receive compensation from purchasers of the offered securities for whom they may act as agents. Compensation may be in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions. Underwriters, dealers and agents that participate in the distribution of the offered securities may be underwriters as defined in the Securities Act and any discounts or commissions received by them from us and any profit on the resale of the offered securities by them may be treated as underwriting discounts and commissions under the Securities Act.

We may indemnify the underwriters and agents against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or contribute to payments they may be required to make in respect of such liabilities.

Underwriters, dealers and agents may engage in transactions with, or perform services for, us or our affiliates in the ordinary course of their businesses.

LEGAL MATTERS

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Issuer by Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz. Unless otherwise provided in the applicable prospectus supplement, certain legal matters will be passed upon for any underwriters or agents by their own counsel.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements of the Issuer and Subsidiaries appearing in the Issuer's Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the effectiveness of the Issuer's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, as set forth in their reports thereon, included therein, and incorporated herein by reference. Such financial statements are, and audited financial statements to be included in subsequently filed documents will be, incorporated herein in reliance upon the reports of Ernst & Young LLP pertaining to such financial statements (to the extent covered by consents filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission) given on the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

h Bank of Hawaii

7,200,000 Depositary Shares Each Representing a 1/40th Interest in a Share of 4.375% Fixed Rate Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A

Prospectus Supplement

Joint Book-Running Managers

BofA Securities

Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC

Keefe, Bruyette & Woods

A Stifel Company

UBS Investment Bank

June 8, 2021